
City of Capitola 

Council Meeting Agenda  

 

   

Mayor: Yvette Brooks  

Vice Mayor: Sam Storey  

Council Members: Jacques Bertrand  

 Margaux Keiser  

 Kristen Petersen  

                          REVISED  

THURSDAY, AUGUST 26, 2021 
 

REGULAR MEETING - 7 PM 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 5:45 PM 
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting. 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL –  ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Gov’t Code § 54956.9(d)(4). 

Initiation of litigation, one potential case 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  

(Gov’t Code § 54957.6) 
            Negotiators: Algeria Ford, Larry Laurent  

Employee Organizations: (1) Police Captains; (2) Capitola Police Officers Association; 
(3) Association of Capitola Employees 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM 

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.  All matters listed on the Regular Meeting 
of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be considered as Public Hearings. 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
August 26, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 9/8/2021 4:40 PM 

Council Members Kristen Petersen, Jacques Bertrand, Margaux Keiser, Sam Storey, and 
Mayor Yvette Brooks 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

Presentations are limited to eight minutes. 

A. Introduce New Museum Curator 

B. Present Certificates of Appreciation for Frank Phanton and Carolyn Swift 

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

A. Item 8.G – two staff provided attachments 
B. Item 9.A – two public comment emails 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Please review the Notice of Remote Access for instructions. 
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any “Consent Item” on tonight’s agenda, or on any topic within the jurisdiction of the City that 
is not on the “General Government/Public Hearings” section of the Agenda. Members of the 
public may speak for up to three minutes, unless otherwise specified by the Mayor. 
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications. All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. A 
MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral Communications. 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or identify issues 
for staff response or future council consideration. No individual shall speak for more than 
two minutes. 

 8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Consider the July 22 City Council Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Planning Commission Action Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes.  

C. Approval of City Check Registers Dated July 16, July 23, July 30, August 6, and 
August 13 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 

D. Donation to Service Corps of Retired Executives: Central Coast 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to donate $500 to the 
Service Core of Retired Executives: Central Coast in recognition of their assistance 

on Capitola’s Business Recovery Task Force. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
August 26, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 9/8/2021 4:40 PM 

E. Purchase Used Police Motorcycle and Surplus Police Motorcycle 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Police Department to purchase a 2016 
BMW R1200-RTP motorcycle from Max BMW Motorcycle for $16,000 and authorize 
the sale/auction of a 2014 Zero motorcycle.   

F. Update Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution amending the hourly and 
seasonal Pay Schedule. 

G. Employee Group Agreements 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
1.  Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor agreements to existing 

Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) with negotiated changes for the following 
groups: 
a. Capitola Police Officers Association (CPOA). 
b. Capitola Police Captains Association 

2.   Adopt a Resolution approving the new salary schedule. 

H. Capitola Recreation Afterschool Program Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report on the Capitola Recreation Afterschool 
program at New Brighton Middle School.  

 9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision. 

A. Receive Update on Pandemic Response 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Make the determination that all hazards related to the worldwide spread of the 
coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 adopted by the City 
Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to continue action; and 

2. Extend the COVID-19 temporary use permits allowing for outdoor dining to January 
3, 2022 and implement rules for permit holders, as outlined in the staff report.  

B. Award a Contract for 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Adaptive Signal Project 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Award a contract to Bear Electric Solutions from Alviso for construction of the 41st 
Avenue Adaptive Traffic Signal System in the amount of $460,526; and 

2. Authorize the City Manager to reallocate up to $100,000 in the Capital Improvement 
Project fund from the Bay Avenue/Capitola Avenue Roundabout project to the 41st 
Avenue Adaptive Traffic Signal project. 

C. Community Grant Subcommittee 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint two Councilmembers to a subcommittee to 

review applications for the 2021 –  2022 Community Grant Program.  

D. Consider Request for Sponsorship of the Capitola Beach Festival 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to provide $5,000 in 
sponsorship to the Capitola Beach Festival.  



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
August 26, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 9/8/2021 4:40 PM 

 10. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS 
In accordance with the current Santa Cruz County Health Order outlining social distancing 
requirements and Executive Order N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the City Council meeting is not physically open to the public and in person 
attendance cannot be accommodated.  
 
To watch: 

1. Online  http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx 
1. Spectrum Cable Television channel 8 

To join Zoom: 
1. Join the Zoom Meeting with the following link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83661140310?pwd=V0F5TmRFQVpnN3JxNkdxd3NkTlptUT09    
1. If prompted for a passcode, enter 432002 
1. -OR- With a landline or mobile phone, call one of the following numbers: 

a. 1 669 900 6833 
1 408 638 0968  
1 346 248 7799  

1. Enter the meeting ID number: 836 6114 0310 
1. When prompted for a Participant ID, press # 

 
To submit public comment:  
When submitting public comment, one comment (via phone or email, not both), per person, per 
item is allowed. If you send more than one email about the same item, the last received will be 
read.  

1. Zoom Meeting (Via Computer or Phone) Link: 
A. IF USING COMPUTER:  

▪ Use participant option to “raise hand” during the public comment period for 
the item you wish to speak on. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes 
to speak 

A. IF CALLED IN OVER THE PHONE:  
▪ Press *9 on your phone to “raise your hand” when the mayor calls for public 

comment. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes to speak 
1. Send Email:  

A. During the meeting, send comments via email to 
publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us    
▪ Emailed comments on items will be accepted after the start of the meeting 

until the Mayor announces that public comment for that item is closed. 
▪ Emailed comments should be a maximum of 450 words, which corresponds 

to approximately 3 minutes of speaking time. 
▪ Each emailed comment will be read aloud for up to three minutes and/or 

displayed on a screen. 
▪ Emails received by publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us outside of the comment 

period outlined above will not be included in the record. 
 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 

http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83661140310?pwd=V0F5TmRFQVpnN3JxNkdxd3NkTlptUT09
mailto:publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
August 26, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 9/8/2021 4:40 PM 

upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall prior to 
the meeting. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, 
Capitola. Need more information? Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting 
Agendas/Videos.” Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at any time. 

 



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduce New Museum Curator  
 

 
 
DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola is pleased to introduce Deborah Osterberg as the new 

Capitola Historical Museum Curator. Deborah started with the City in June and has jumped right 

in working with the Historical Museum Board and staff.   

Deborah grew up in Capitola and comes from a background of museum work with the National 

Park Service and the National Archives. Deborah attended California State University, Chico 

where she studied history and geography and went on to the University of California, Santa 

Barbara to study cultural resource management. Deborah is also the author of the book, Historic 

Tales of Henry Cowell Redwoods State Park – Big Trees Grove of which research and 

inspiration came from her volunteer work as a docent at the park. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.A

Packet Pg. 6



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Present Certificates of Appreciation for Frank Phanton and Carolyn Swift  
 

 
. 
 
DISCUSSION: Frank Phanton, a local Santa Cruz County Architect, was first appointed to the 

Architectural and Site Review Committee in 2003. Since then he has provided expert design 

advice to City applicants that improved proposed designs, always with a healthy dose of humor.  

Mr. Phanton put emphasis on how designs will function for the homeowner and a design’s 

compatibility and function within the context of the neighborhood. With his artful eye and 

thoughtful site planning, Mr. Phanton has helped hundreds of applicants improve the design of 

their project; this incremental impact has protected the character of Capitola’s cherished 

neighborhoods for almost three decades.      

Carolyn Swift served as the Capitola Historical Museum curator for twenty years from 1993 to 

2013. In 2008, she was appointed to represent the City on the Architectural and Site Review 

Committee for all historic preservation applications. She continued in this roll past her 2013 

retirement from the Museum until July of this year. With her in-depth knowledge of Capitola’s 

history and expertise in established preservation policy, Carolyn Swift has made a tremendous 

impact on the preservation of Capitola’s historic resources. Her 13 years of service on the 

Architectural and Site Review Committee resulted in development projects that preserve and 

respect the history of Capitola.  

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Katie Herlihy 
 Community Development Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

2.B

Packet Pg. 7



1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE 

POLICE CAPTAINS AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 
PERIOD 7/1/2021 – 6/30/2024 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) shall become effective upon ratification by 

the Police Captains (Employees) and approval by the City of Capitola City Council.  This 

MOU shall be in effect from July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2024.    

In recognition of the need to prevent compaction between the Captains and the Police 

Officer Association (POA) employees, the Captains shall not receive less than the cost of 

living adjustments received by the Police Officers Association for any given year under 

consideration.  Should an increase of the POA cost of living be more than the Captains 

salary adjustment for that contract year, the Captain’s salary shall be adjusted by the 

increased amount and such adjustment shall occur at the time the POA adjustment is 

implemented.  It also is the City’s goal to maintain a minimum 15% differential in 

compensation between a top step Sergeant and a top step Captain taking into account 

salary, education incentive pay, shift differential and longevity pay. 

1. Personnel Rules

The Personnel Rules and Regulations of the City of Capitola, existing or hereafter

adopted, are not altered, changed or modified unless by explicit provisions of this

MOU.

2. Salary

A. Attached hereto is a salary schedule applicable to Police Captains.

B. Except as provided in Section 3, Employee's monthly salary shall be as

shown on the attached schedule.  "Salary" does not include, and is in

addition to: flex plan, PERS, or other benefits to which Employee is entitled.

C. Pay Increase Schedule

Effective upon ratification of the MOU and Council approval of the

successor MOU in accordance with the Brown Act, the salary range for each

classification in this Unit shall be readjusted by 3.0%.

Effective the first full pay period of July 2022, the salary range for each

classification in this Unit shall be readjusted by 3.0%.

Effective the first full pay period of July 2023, the salary range for each

classification in this Unit shall be readjusted by 3.0%.

In addition, upon ratification, all classifications shall receive a one-time

market study salary increase of .5%.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 8

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 2 

D. Signing Bonus: All full-time employees at the time of ratification unit shall 

receive a one-time $1250 signing bonus, minus applicable taxes.  The one-

time signing bonus shall be paid the first full pay period after ratification by 

the Capitola City Council. 

 

3. Longevity Pay Incentive 

 

Employees having 10 consecutive years of full time employment with the City of 

Capitola are eligible for a 5% longevity enhancement, which shall be applied to 

base salary. Employees having 15 consecutive years of full time employment with 

the City of Capitola are eligible for an additional compounded 5% longevity 

enhancement. 

 

 

4. Vacation 

 

A.  Vacation  

            Vacation Accrual 

 

 Vacation accrues on a prorated basis, based upon a 30-day month. The rates of 

accrual are as follows: 

 

   Years of Employment  Vacation Days 

      1 and 2    12 

      3 and 4    14 

      5 through 9    17 

      10 through 19   22 

      20 and higher   27 

 

B.      Accumulation 

 

(1) An employee, may generally not accumulate more than 540 hours of 

vacation, but instead each year must cash out, pursuant to Sections 4C 

and 4D below, all accumulated vacation in excess of 67.5 days (540 

hours), except that 

 

(2) An employee who had accumulated more than 67.5 vacation days (540 

hours) as of 6/30/94 may maintain that level: provided, however, that if 

accumulated vacation falls below 67.5 days (540 hours), the provisions 

of  (B) (1), above shall thereafter apply. 

 

C. Vacation Cash Out Upon Termination 

 

An employee who has unused vacation and who leaves the City service for 

any reason will not continue to accrue vacation after the last day of regular 

on-the-job employment (separation date) and will be paid at the then 

applicable rate for all accumulated but unused vacation leave to the date of 

separation. 

 

D.       Vacation Cash Out Before Termination 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 3 

 

Employee will be eligible to convert up to 40 hours per fiscal year of 

accumulated vacation time to cash.  The payout rate is calculated by 

converting Employee’s salary, at the rate applicable on the cash out date, to 

an hourly rate in the manner set forth in attached section 2 of Standard MOU 

Provisions. 

 

5. Holidays/Personal Holidays 

 

Holiday compensation is covered by Section 40 of the attached "Standard" 

and "Additional" MOU provisions, with the following exceptions: 

  

 Employee shall also be entitled to 3 personal holidays per calendar year.  Unused 

personal holidays are not cumulative. 

   

6. Incorporated Provisions 

The following sections of the "Standard" and "Additional" MOU are attached 

hereto and incorporated herein: 2 (Wage Schedule/Hourly Rates), 3 (Service), 4 

(Types of Appointments), 5 (Beginning Salary Rates), 6 (Advancement Within 

Schedule), 7 (Promotion To New Position), 9 (Personnel Rules),  10 (Effective Date 

of Pay Increase), 13 (Sick Leave Defined), 16 (Bereavement Leave), 17 (Family 

and Medical Leave Act of 1993), 19 (Accruals After Date of Separation), 22 (Drug 

Free Policy), 26 (Re-opener), 40 (Holidays), and 50 (Education Reimbursement). 

 

7. Sick Leave Accrual/Medical Report 

Sick leave accrues on a prorated basis, based upon a 30-day month.  Twelve days 

(96 hours) accrue each calendar year. 

 

8. Sick Leave Cash Out 

Employees shall have no right to cash out any sick leave. 

 

9. Insurance 

The City will provide term life insurance in the amount of $50,000 and long-term 

disability insurance to date of separation. 

 

10. Physical Examinations 

The City, in conjunction with the comprehensive health care insurance program, 

will provide an annual physical examination for Employee only.  City will pay the 

amount not covered by the health care program. 

 

11. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 

 

A. Classic Sworn Employees 

The City participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System 

(CalPERS) operated by the State of California. Benefits provided are detailed 

in separate publications, depending upon the plan. City agrees to provide 3% at 

50 Retirement Plan for Classic Safety employees in the Unit. 

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 4 

Beginning July 1, 2018, all Classic Sworn employees shall contribute 14.974% 

of their reportable salary to CalPERS.  This contribution shall not be reduced 

unless negotiated by the parties in future negotiations. 

 

B. Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA)  

For new safety employees hired by the City  of Capitola on or after January 1, 2013 

and who do not qualify as classic members as defined by PERS, are considered 

PEPRA employees. CalPERS has by statute implemented a 2.7% @ 55   pension   

formula, based on a three-year average   compensation.  Employees in this category 

shall pay 50% of the normal cost rate as determined by PERS 

 

 12. Jury Duty 

 

Leave of absence with pay shall be granted to Employee while serving on jury 

duty.  Any jury fee awarded shall be deposited with the City Treasurer. 

 

13 Grievance Procedure 

 

A. Definition.  Until modified by adoption of City-wide Personnel Rules, 

grievance is defined as an allegation by an employee or group of employees 

that the Employer has failed to provide a condition of employment, which 

is established by law, Compensation Plan, by an pertinent written City or 

departmental rules, provided that the enjoyment of such right is not made 

subject to the discretion of the Employer by the terms of this Compensation 

Plan and, provided further, that if the grievance pertains to "conditions of 

employment" the subject is a matter that is within "scope of representation" 

as defined in California Government Code Section 3504. 

 

B. Department Review and Adjustment of Grievances.   The following is the 

procedure to be followed in the resolution of grievances. 

 

1. Employee shall have the right to consult with and be assisted by a 

representative of his own choice in this and all succeeding steps of 

this section and may thereafter file a grievance in writing with the 

immediate supervisor.  Within five actual working days after receipt 

of any written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall return a 

copy of the written grievance to Employee with his/her answer 

thereto, in writing. 

 

2. If the grievance is not resolved at the first level, Employee shall have 

five actual working days after receipt of the answer within which to 

file an appeal with the City Manager. 

 

3. The City Manager shall have five actual working days in which to 

review, and if necessary, hold hearings, and answer the grievance in 

writing.  Unless waived by the mutual agreement of Employee or 

his representative and the City Manager, a hearing is required at this 

step, and Employee, and his representative, shall have the right to 

be present and participate in such hearing.  The time limit at this step 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 11

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 5 

may be extended by mutual agreement between the City Manager 

and Employee or his representative. 

 

C. Effect of Failure of Timely Action.  Failure of Employee to file an appeal 

within the required time limit at any step shall constitute an abandonment 

of the grievance.  Failure of the Employer to respond within the time limit 

at any step shall result in an automatic advancement of the grievance to the 

next step. 

 

D. Limitation on Stale Grievances.  A grievance shall be void unless presented 

within thirty (30) calendar days from the day upon which the Employer has 

allegedly failed to provide a condition of employment, or within thirty (30) 

calendar days from the time at which an employee might reasonably have 

been expected to learn of such alleged failure to provide.  In no event shall 

any grievance include a claim for salary or similar monetary relief for more 

than the thirty-day period plus such reasonable discovery period. 

 

14. Administrative Leave 

 

As an exempt employee, Employee is entitled to 10 days per year of  

Administrative Leave (time off).  Administrative Leave is non-cumulative.  It 

may not be converted to cash. 

 

15. Mileage Reimbursement 

 

Employees required to use their personal vehicles while on City business will be 

reimbursed at the most recent rate set by the Internal Revenue Service.   

 

16. Flexible Spending Arrangement Contributions 

 

The City makes a flexible spending arrangement ("Flex Plan") contribution on 

behalf of each qualified employee.  For those employees who have selected health 

coverage through PERS, from the monthly contribution set forth herein will be paid 

to PERS for what is sometimes referred to as "employer contribution".  This amount 

is the minimum amount required by PERS, recognizing that state law may increase 

this minimum from time to time requiring compliance by City. For all employees 

the City will no longer charge to the employee the $1.50 per paycheck plan fee. 

 

The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (“Flex Plan”) contribution on 

behalf of each qualified employee for medical, dental & vision coverage. For those 

employees who have selected health coverage through CalPERS, from the monthly 

contribution set forth herein, Effective January 1, 2021 a $143.00 per month 

contribution will be paid to CalPERS for what is sometimes referred to as 

“employer contribution”. This amount is the minimum amount required by 

CalPERS, recognizing that state law may increase this minimum from time to time 

requiring compliance by City.  The City’s maximum contribution below is inclusive 

of the required PEMCHA minimum.   

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 12

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 6 

 
 

 

 

Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that they have equivalent group 

health coverage for medical (including dental & vision), which will remain in effect 

until the next enrollment date will be eligible for a cash payment of $250.00.   

 

The city reserves the option of adding additional programs to the cafeteria plan, as 

they may become available. 

 

17. Uniform Allowance 

 

Effective the first full pay period upon ratification by the City Council, each year 

Employer shall pay $38.00 per pay period as and for a uniform allowance.  

Employer has made no representation as to the tax treatment of such allowance. 

 
Compensation paid or the monetary value for the purchase, rental and/or 

maintenance of required uniforms will be reported to CalPERS, to the extent 
allowable by CalPERS. 

 

18. Workers Compensation 

 Workers Compensation is payable as provided in the California Labor Code. 

 

19. Captain probation 

 

Probation for the position of Captain shall be six months and shall be governed by 

the attached Standard MOU Provisions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Effective Dates Employee Only Employee +1 Employee +2 

First full pay period after 

ratification. 

$824.00 $1339.00 $1751.00 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 13

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 7 

 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager 

 

 

By: ________________________  Date:  ___________________________ 

 

 

EMPLOYEE  

Andrew Dally 

Police Captain 

 

By: ________________________  Date:  ___________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 14

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 8 

 

 

EXCERPTS FROM STANDARD MOU PROVISIONS 

 

2. Wage Schedules/Hourly Rates 

 

The wage schedules contained in, or attached to, this Memorandum of 

Understanding set forth the base pay, subject to such adjustments (such as longevity 

pay) as are specifically set forth in this MOU.  Letters, such as "A" to "F", designate 

the respective pay steps for each position.  The rates contained in the wage schedule 

do not include overtime or benefits. 

 

Whenever it is necessary to compute an hourly pay rate in order to apply an 

provision of this MOU, that will be done by multiplying any monthly rate by 12 in 

order to derive an annual rate, and dividing the annual rate by 2080 (or 

proportionate number of hours for part time positions, e.g., 1040 for a half-time 

position). 

 

3. Service 

 

 The word “service” as used in this Memorandum of Understanding means 

continuous full-time service in the position in which the employee is being 

considered for salary advancement, service in a higher position, or service in a 

position allocated to the same salary schedule and having generally similar duties 

and requirements.  A lapse of service of any employee for a period of time longer 

than thirty days by reason of resignation or discharge shall serve to eliminate the 

accumulated length of service time of such employee, and any such employee re-

entering the service of the City shall be considered as a new employee. 

 

4. Types of Appointment 

 

The following types of appointment may be either full-time, as established by the 

City Manager: 

 

A. Probationary appointment 

 

A probationary appointment is for a specified period of time, during 

which job performance is evaluated as a basis for subsequent regular 

appointment. 

 

B. Regular appointments. 

 

A regular appointment ordinarily follows successful completion of a 

probationary period.  “Regular” means a position that is, regardless of 

the number of hours worked per week, intended to be continuous and 

uninterrupted (except for authorized paid or unpaid leave).  Positions 

intended to be seasonal, of a limited term, on call only, emergency, 

intermittent, substitute, or on any other irregular basis are not “regular.”  

The positions set forth in the wage schedule are all regular positions, 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 15

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 9 

and unless specifically stated, the pay rate is applicable to a full-time 

position.  All positions covered by the section are half time or more. 

 

C. Acting appointments. 

 

An acting appointment occurs when an employee is temporarily 

assigned to, and performs all the duties of a position other than the 

position he/she normally occupies, or when an employee is assigned an 

acting appointment pending evaluation of the employee’s ability to 

perform the duties of the position. 

   

D. Accruals for part time positions. 

 

When a position is less than full time it will be classified by a fraction.  

For example, “half-time” regular employment is expected to average 20 

hours per week; “three-quarters” employment is expected to average 30 

hours per week.  Vacation accrual, sick leave accrual, Flex Plan 

contributions, holidays, personal holidays are paid or accrued according 

to these classifications.  Thus, compared to a full-time employee, a half-

time employee, even if actual time occasionally exceeds or falls below 

20 hours in a week, when compared to a full-time employee: receives 

one-half the Flex Plan contribution: accrues one-half the number of 

hours of vacation or sick leave; and is paid for four hours on a holiday 

or personal holiday. 

 

5. Beginning Salary Rates 

 

A new employee’s base pay shall be computed by using the rate shown as step “A” 

in the schedule allocated to the class of employment for which the employee has 

been hired, except that upon recommendation of the department head under whom 

the employee will serve and with the approval of the City Manager, such new 

employee may be employed at a higher step, depending upon the employee’s 

qualifications. 

 

6. Advancement within the Schedule  

 

The following provisions govern salary advancement within the schedule: 

 

A. Probationary advancement 

 

Upon successful completion of probation, an employee (except an 

employee that was hired at the top step) will advance one step. 

 

B.  Regular Merit advancement 

 

An employee may be considered for advancement upon completion of 

the minimum length of service specified for step increases.  Unless 

specifically otherwise stated, this will be 12 months for full-time 

appointments and proportionately adjusted for other appointments.  For 

instance half-time appointments will be evaluated for regular merit 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 16

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 10 

adjustments every 24 months.  Advancement to higher steps shall be 

granted only for continued meritorious and efficient service and 

continued improvement by the employee in the effective performance 

of the duties of the position held. 

 

C. Special Merit advancement 

 

When an employee consistently demonstrates exceptional ability and 

proficiency in the performance of assigned duties, the supervising 

department head may recommend to the City Manager that said 

employee be advanced to higher pay step without regard to the 

minimum length of service provisions contained in this resolution.  The 

City Manager may approve and effect such advancement. 

 

D. Denial of advancement 

 

When an employee has not been approved for advancement to the next 

higher wage step, such employee may be reconsidered for such 

advancement after the completion of three months of additional service. 

 

7.         Promotion to New Position 

 

When an employee is promoted to a position in a higher classification, such 

employee shall be assigned to step “a” in the appropriate schedule for the higher 

classification.  However, if such employee is already being paid at a rate equal to 

or higher than step “A”, he/she shall be placed in the step in the appropriate salary 

schedule which will grant such employee a salary increase of not less than 5%. 

 

9.         Personnel Rules 

 

The City retains the right to amend and create personnel rules, provided they are 

not in conflict with specific provisions of the MOU.  Where appropriate, City will 

meet and confer with applicable employee group or groups (Government Code 

Section 3300 and following), before amending or creating new personnel rules. 

  

10.       Effective Date of Pay Increase 

 

A merit-pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day 

of the pay period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily 

completed.   Any other mid-pay period payroll adjustments will occur at the 

beginning of the pay period in which the adjustment falls for all odd numbered 

calendar years; and, at the beginning of the following pay period for the even 

number calendar years. 

 

13.  Sick Leave Defined 

 

Employees have the right under federal and state law (see Section 17 below) to be 

absent from regularly scheduled work without being reprimanded, disciplined, or 

discharged.  They may also have additional rights under their MOUs.  "Sick leave" 

as used herein refers to an employee's rights to be compensated, by means other 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 17

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 11 

than Workers Compensation benefits, while on medical leave or where so allowed, 

by specific provisions in the MOU, such as bereavement leave. 

 

16. Bereavement Leave 

 

Leave of absence with pay because of death in the immediate family of an employee 

shall be granted for a period not to exceed three days.  Entitlement to leave of 

absence under this section shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick 

leave, or any other leave.  For purposes of this section, "immediate family" means 

mother, step-mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, son, step-son, daughter, 

step-daughter, brother, sister, foster parent, foster child, brother-in-law, sister-in-

law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents. 

 

17. Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993 

 

The City shall follow the provisions provided for family leave as specified in the 

federal Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993, and the state Family Rights Act as 

it applies to public employees.  

 

19. Accruals after Date of Separation  

 

An employee’s separation date is the last date actually worked, except that an 

employee who, as of the last day worked, has not used all of his/her yearly allotment 

of vacation may extend the separation date by the number of days necessary to 

reach the full yearly allotment.  “Yearly allotment” means the amount of vacation 

that the employee was entitled to accrue in his/her last year of employment.  Unless 

otherwise provided by state law, none of the following accrue after the date of 

separation: sick leave, vacation, personal holidays, holiday pay, administrative 

leave, Flex Plan contributions, or the insurance described in Section 16 of the 

Standard MOU. 

 

22. Drug Policy 

 

The City is implementing its "Drug Free Workplace Policy". 

 

26. Re-opener 

 

Upon request of any bargaining unit, the parties will negotiate whether specific 

provisions will be added to the MOU about awards of days off for five years of 

accident free work. 

 

40. Holiday Schedule 

 

There shall be twelve (12) holidays granted annually for the life of the MOU.  The 

holidays to be observed during the calendar year are set forth below.   

                 

  

 New Year’s Day   1/01               

 Martin Luther King Day  *    

 Lincoln’s Birthday   2/12    

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 18

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 12 

 Washington’s Birthday  *    

 Memorial Day    *    

 Independence Day   7/4      

 Labor Day    *     

 Columbus Day   *    

 Veterans’ Day    11/11    

 Thanksgiving Day   *    

 Friday Following Thanksgiving *    

 Christmas Day    12/25  

   

 *These Holidays are taken at the same time as the federal holiday is scheduled.  

Holidays listed above occurring on a Saturday shall be observed on Friday.  

Holidays occurring on a Sunday shall be observed on Monday. 

 

 In addition, City hall will be closed for one week during the Christmas holidays 

during which employees affected by the closure will be permitted to use vacation, 

personal holidays or sick leave in order not to lose compensation. 

 

50. Education Reimbursement Program 

 

A. Tuition & Books: The City will reimburse employees for tuition and 

textbooks upon the completion of courses approved in advance by the City 

Manager in accordance with the following schedule: 

 

  State supported California colleges and universities - 100% tuition and 

 textbook reimbursement. 

 

  Private colleges and universities - 100% of tuition or the tuition of the 

 University of California whichever is less.  Textbook reimbursement will 

 be at 100%. 

 

B. Education Incentive Pay: Upon satisfactory completion of 50% of an 

applicable Masters Degree as determined by the City Manager, or 50% of 

P.O.S.T. Command College,  the employee shall receive a salary increase 

equal to 5% of base pay. The  employee shall submit to the City Manager a 

list of courses and credits, together with transcripts to verify the acquisition 

of claimed credits. Satisfactory completion shall mean a grade of “C” or 

better in any course. For Command College employee shall submit 

verification of enrollment and a program schedule to the City Manager.  The 

City Manager will determine at what point in the schedule delineates 50% 

completion of the program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 19

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 13 

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 20

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

1 
 

Contents 
ARTICLE 1.00 TERM ................................................................................................................ 2 
ARTICLE 2.00 DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................. 2 

ARTICLE 3.00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE .............................................................. 2 
ARTICLE 4.00 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION, RIGHTS AND SECURITY ...................... 3 
ARTICLE 5.00 HIRING PROVISIONS ..................................................................................... 4 
ARTICLE 6.00 JOB CLASSIFICATION ................................................................................... 5 
ARTICLE 7.00 HOURS OF WORK, SHIFT, SCHEDULES, AND REST PERIODS ............. 5 

ARTICLE 8.00 OVERTIME....................................................................................................... 6 
ARTICLE 9.00 HEALTH AND SAFETY ................................................................................. 7 
ARTICLE 10.00 UNIFORMS ..................................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 11.00 HOLIDAYS...................................................................................................... 8 
ARTICLE 12.00 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ARRANGEMENT CONTRIBUTIONS ................. 8 
ARTICLE 13.00 INSURANCE ................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 14.00 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM .................................................. 9 
ARTICLE 15.00 CALLBACK PAY - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE SERGEANTS AND 

RECORDS MANAGER ............................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 16.00 NIGHT DIFFERENTIAL - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE ......................... 11 
SERGEANTS & RECORDS MANAGER ................................................................................... 11 
ARTICLE 18.00 TRAINING OFFICER COMPENSATION ................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 19.00 SPECIALTY PAY ......................................................................................... 11 
ARTICLE 20.00 ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION ............................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 21.00 LEAVES OF ABSENCE ............................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 22.00 VACATION ................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE 23.00 SICK LEAVE ................................................................................................. 15 
ARTICLE 24.00 WAGES & EMPLOYMENT STATUS (SEE ATTACHMENT A).............. 16 

ARTICLE 25.00  GRIEVANCES .............................................................................................. 19 
ARTICLE 26.00 DEPARTMENTAL VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT .................................. 21 
ARTICLE 27.00 RETIREMENT - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM ......... 22 

ARTICLE 28.00 PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS ..................................................................... 22 
ARTICLE 29.00 FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993 ........................................... 23 
ARTICLE 30.00 MISCELLANEOUS ....................................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE 31.00 DRUG POLICY ............................................................................................. 23 
ARTICLE 32.00 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) ................................................. 23 
ARTICLE 34.00 PERSONNEL RULES ................................................................................... 24 

ARTICLE 35.00 LAYOFF PROCEDURES ............................................................................. 24 
ARTICLE 36.00 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT ................................................................... 24 
ARTICLE 37.00 SAVINGS CLAUSE ...................................................................................... 24 
ARTICLE 38.00 ENACTMENT ............................................................................................... 24 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 21

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

2 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION 

AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 

 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU” or “Agreement”) is made and entered 

into by and between CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION and the CITY OF 
CAPITOLA for and on behalf of its members hereinafter identified. This MOU embodies all items 
agreed upon by and between the City of Capitola and the Capitola Police Officers’ Association. 

ARTICLE 1.00 TERM 

The term of this Memorandum of Understanding shall cover the period from ratification through 

June 30, 2024 and shall be effective upon ratification by the bargaining unit and approval by the 

Capitola City Council. 

 

ARTICLE 2.00 DEFINITIONS 

2.01 EMPLOYER 

The term “Employer” as used herein refers to the City of Capitola. The words 
“Management”, “Department Head”, “Police Chief”, may also be used to refer to 
“Employer” in appropriate contexts. 

2.02 ASSOCIATION 

The term “Association” as used herein shall refer to the Capitola Police Officers’ 

Association. 

2.03 EMPLOYEE/REPRESENTATION UNIT 

The term “Employee” or “Covered Employee”, as used herein, means all persons employed 

by the Employer in the Police Department who are classified as Community Services 

Officer, Police Officer, Police Officer Trainee, Records Manager and Sergeant. Those 

positions constitute the unit represented by Capitola Police Officers’ Association. 

2.04 PATROL VEHICLE 

The term “patrol vehicle” as used herein shall refer to any motor vehicle as defined under the 

provisions of Sections 415 and 165 of the California Vehicle Code. 

2.05 PEACE OFFICER/SWORN PERSONNEL 

The terms “peace officers” or “sworn personnel” means “police officers” as defined in 

Penal Code Sections 830 and 830.1. 

ARTICLE 3.00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 22

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

3 
 

 
Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this MOU, the CITY retains all management 
prerogatives. These include but are not limited to: determining the mission of its constituent 

departments; setting standards of service; determining the procedures and standards of 
selection for employment and promotion; directing its employees; taking disciplinary action; 
relieving its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; 

maintaining the efficiency of governmental operations; determining the methods, means, and 
personnel by which government operations are to be conducted; taking all necessary actions 
to carry out its mission in emergencies; and exercising control and discretion over its 

organization and the technology of performing its work. 

Nothing in this article shall be construed to limit, amend, decrease, revoke, or otherwise 
modify the rights vested in the CITY by state law, city ordinances, or resolutions or other 

laws regulating, authorizing, or empowering the CITY to act or refrain from acting. 

 

 

ARTICLE 4.00 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION, RIGHTS AND SECURITY 

 

4.01 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION 

Except as limited by Government Code Section 3502, the Employer hereby recognizes the 
Capitola Police Officers Association (P.O.A), as the exclusive collective bargaining agent 

of all covered Employees in this unit. 

4.02 NOTICE OF RECOGNIZED ASSOCIATION 

The Employer/Association shall post within the employee work or rest area a written 
notice which sets forth the classifications included and referred to in Section 2.03 hereof 

and the name and address of Association as the recognized employee organization for such 
units. The P.O.A. shall also give a written notice to persons newly employed in 
representation unit classifications, which notice shall contain the name and address of the 

employee organization recognized for such unit. 

4.03 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AND PAYOVER 

The Association will maintain records of employee authorizations for dues deductions and shall 

provide the City with information regarding the amount of dues deductions and the list of 

Association members who have authorized dues deductions. To the extent required by the 

Government Code, the City shall rely on the information provided by the Association and deduct 

those authorized. 

 

The employee’s earnings must be sufficient after other legal and required deductions are made to 

cover the amount of the dues. When an employee is in a non-pay status for an entire pay period, no 

deduction will be made to cover the pay period. In the case of an employee who is in a non-pay 

status during part of the pay period, and the salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, 

no deduction shall be made. In this circumstance, all other legal and required deductions (including 

health care deductions) have priority over Association dues.  

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 23

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

4 
 

The Association agrees to enforce this provision and to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its 

officers, and employees, from all liabilities and/or damages of any nature arising from the 

application of this section.  

 

4.04 HOLD HARMLESS 

Association shall indemnify and hold Employer harmless from any and all claims, 
demands, suits, or any other action arising from an employee claim relating to legality, or 
implementation, of Section 4.03. 

4.05 BULLETIN BOARDS 

Reasonable space shall be allowed on bulletin boards as specified by the Police Chief for 
use by the Association to communicate on relevant subjects with departmental employees. 
Material shall be posted upon the bulletin board space as designated, and not upon the 

walls, doors, filing cabinets or any other place. Posted material shall not be obscene, 
defamatory, or of a partisan political nature, nor shall it pertain to public issues which do 
not involve the Employer or its relations with City employees. All posted material shall 

bear the identity of the sponsor, shall be neatly displayed, and shall be removed when no 
longer timely. 

4.06 USE OF EMPLOYER FACILITIES 

Employer facilities such as the City Hall Community Room may be made available upon 

timely application for use by employees and the Association. Such use shall not occur 
during regular duty hours, other than the lunch period. Application for such use shall be 
made to the management person under whose control the facility is placed. 

4.07 BARGAINING 

Employee members of the Association’s bargaining committee shall be allowed time to 
absent themselves from duties for a reasonable period without loss of pay, for the purpose 
of participating in contract negotiations. Employee members of Association’s bargaining 

committee shall be extended the same privilege to participate in any meetings mutually 
called by the parties during the term of this Agreement for review of grievances and 
contract compliance questions. 

ARTICLE 5.00 HIRING PROVISIONS 

 

5.01 NON-DISCRIMINATION 

No Employee covered by this Agreement shall be discriminated against by the Employer, 
or by the Association by reason of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, or sexual 
orientation or any other factors consistent with State and Federal Law. 

5.02 EMPLOYMENT 

The Employer shall not discharge or otherwise discriminate against any Employee by 
reason of any Association activity not interfering with the proper performance of his/her 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 24

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

5 
 

work. 

5.03 SIGNING BONUS 

Sworn employees hired as a Lateral Officer after August 5, 2012 may receive a one-time 

signing bonus of up to $2,000 upon the successful completion of probation and obtaining 

regular full-time employment status.  A Lateral Officer is defined as an applicant who is 

currently working for a recognized law enforcement agency, has successfully completed 

the probation period for that agency, and possesses a State of California Basic POST 

Certificate. The City Manager shall make the determination as to the amount.  The amount 

of the signing bonus shall be specified in the hire-letter.  

All employees who were members of the CPOA at the time of ratification will receive a 

one-time signing bonus of $1,250.00. 

ARTICLE 6.00 JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

6.01 NEW JOB CLASSIFICATIONS 

If an Employee covered by this Agreement is assigned work of a substantially new or 

different nature so as to constitute a new job classification, the Employer and the 
Association will negotiate regarding the wage rate applicable to such new job classification 

ARTICLE 7.00 HOURS OF WORK, SHIFT, SCHEDULES, AND REST PERIODS 

 

7.01 WORK SCHEDULE AND CHANGE OF SHIFT 

Prior to the applicable pay period, the Police Chief or his/her designated representative 
shall prepare a schedule showing the hours each employee of the department is, at the time 
of posting, to work. The Police Chief shall make every effort to assure that no employee 

shall have more than one change of shift in any calendar month. This paragraph does not 
limit the Police Chiefs authority to revise schedules as need permits. 

7.02 SHIFT 

For sworn personnel and Community Service Officers, hours of work in the normal 
workday shall be ten (10) hours for police officers and police sergeants, except for detective 
bureau personnel, which is (8) hours. While they are assigned to the detective bureau, the 

sick leave accrual provisions of this MOU that are applicable to 5/8 employees will be 
applicable to such employees. 

 

7.03 ASSIGNING WORK SHIFTS 

In assigning work shifts, the department shall give due regard to assigning shifts which will 

not disrupt or interrupt any employee’s education or training programs and schedules. 
Undesirable work shifts shall not be used as punishment, intimidation, or harassment. Shift 
assignments shall be carried out in accordance with department policy. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 25

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

6 
 

7.03.1 SUCCESSIVE SHIFTS 

It is understood that the assignment of shifts is a prerogative of management that has been 
delegated to the Chief of Police. It has been the practice to assign at an officer’s request, 

on the basis of seniority, the same shift for two successive shift changes. It is understood 
that this practice will be continued for the duration of this MOU. Although the assignment 
of successive shifts remains with the Chief of Police, should an officer allege that such 

assignment has been made in an arbitrary or discriminatory manner, the matter may be 
reviewed through the City Manager level of the Grievance Procedure. 

7.03.2 SPECIAL EVENT ASSIGNMENTS 

The parties agree that except as required in Departmental Order No. 2, “Manpower 
Deployment” dated December 15, 1987, Item III A, Holiday Staffing and III B Overtime 
Shifts, any special event outside of a member’s work schedule shall receive 30 days’ notice 

which will include the following: location, time and hours to be worked. If this condition 
is not met, the officer or sergeant will not be required to work the event (a special event is 
not an emergency).   

7.04 MEAL AND REST PERIODS 

A meal period of 30 minutes shall be provided to all other employees during each assigned 
shift no sooner than 3 hours after commencement of the shift and not later than 3 hours 
prior to the end of the shift. Such meal period for sworn officers (including those on 

detective assignment) and community service officers shall be considered time worked. 

ARTICLE 8.00 OVERTIME 

 

8.01 REGULAR/OVERTIME HOURS 

The normal workweek for all bargaining unit employees shall consist of forty (40) hours. 
Except as provided in section 18.02 (regarding canine care), all work in excess of forty 

hours in a workweek shall be considered overtime and shall be compensated pursuant to 
the provisions of Sections 8.00-8.06 of this Agreement. 

8.02 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME AUTHORIZATION 

No employee shall receive compensation for overtime, whether in cash, or in time off, or a 

combination, unless such overtime work has been approved by the Police Chief or his 
designated representative. 

 

8.03 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME 

All overtime work shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times the hourly 

rate in cash. Overtime compensation shall be paid in the paycheck covering the pay period 
in which the overtime was worked. Except as otherwise provided in Labor Code Section 
204.3, at the option of the employee, compensatory time off may be earned in lieu of cash. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 26

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

7 
 

Up to 120 hours may be accumulated. Any time over that maximum shall be in cash at time 
and one-half. Compensatory time off will be scheduled by means of management 

responding to the requests of the employees. Such requests will not be arbitrarily or 
unreasonably denied. 

8.04 OVERTIME NOT CUMULATIVE 

Any hours worked which qualify as overtime under one measurement may not be used 

under another measurement. 

8.05 FRACTIONS OF LESS THAN FIFTEEN MINUTES 

No overtime payment shall be allowed for any period of less than fifteen minutes, and 

fractions of less than fifteen minutes of overtime worked may not be accumulated in order 
to total fifteen minutes or more, except where such fractions are part of a regularly 
scheduled shift. 

8.06 OTHER 

Court appearances and callbacks may also, at times, result in overtime. See Articles17.00 
and 15.00 respectively. Overtime may occur as a result of the last paragraph of section 
11.00. 

ARTICLE 9.00 HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 

9.01 APPLICABLE LAWS  

 Employer shall comply with all applicable state, federal, and local safety regulations and 
shall furnish all employee safety equipment required by law or deemed necessary by the 
Police Chief. 

ARTICLE 10.00 UNIFORMS 

 

10.01 UNIFORMS 

 The employer will purchase initial uniforms for newly hired uniformed employees and will 
repair or replace uniforms including uniform boots, on an as-needed basis. 

The City will designate a police captain to whom the officer will submit the uniform request 

for authorization for repair or replacement. If the officer disagrees with the captain’s 
decision with regard to the necessity for repair or replacement, he or she may have the 
dispute reviewed by the Chief of Police through the grievance procedure included in this 

MOU. 

In addition, the employer will cover the cost of reasonable cleaning of departmentally 
authorized uniforms. Employees will be responsible for delivering uniforms to, and 

retrieving uniforms from, the employer-designated cleaning establishment. 

Police Officers and Sergeants assigned to the Detective unit shall be eligible to choose 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 27

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

8 
 

EITHER the repair, cleaning and replacement policy for their official uniforms as provided 
in Section 10.01 above OR a uniform allowance of $50.00 per month for the duration of 

their assignment to the Detective Division. (The latter choice will be shown as taxable 
income on an Employee’s W-2 form.) 

Compensation paid or the monetary value for the purchase, rental and/or maintenance of 

required uniforms will be reported to CalPERS, to the extent allowable by CalPERS. 

10.02 MOTOR DUTY UNIFORM 

 Employer agrees to provide the following items for Police Officers and Sergeants assigned 

to motorcycle duty: two pairs of motorcycle pants; one pair motorcycle boots and one pair 
of gloves. Police Officers shall also be entitled to an allowance for safety glasses not to 
exceed $20.00. 

ARTICLE 11.00 HOLIDAYS 

 
Holidays will be expressed as an annual (calendar year) bank of hours and taken as 
scheduling permits. Employees working 4/10 schedules shall receive 150 hours per 
calendar year and employees working 5/8 schedules shall receive 120 hours per calendar 

year. Upon termination, if an employee has not actually taken as much holiday time as a 
pro-rated amount, he/she will be entitled to compensation for the unused portion. For 
instance, if a 4/10 employee whose last day was June 30 had taken only 55 hours of holiday 

time, (s)he would be entitled to 20 hours of compensation. Personal Holidays are included 
in the foregoing 150/120 hourly figures, and not in addition to them. Employees working 
4/10 schedules will be debited for 10 holiday hours when they take time off as a holiday; 

those working 5/8 schedules will be debited for 8 hours. 

For Sergeants and Records Manager, December 25th will be a paid holiday if not worked 

(and 10 hours and 8 hours, respectively, of holiday time will be consumed).  If worked, 

employee will be paid time and one half. 

ARTICLE 12.00 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ARRANGEMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 

A   The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (“Flex Plan”) contribution on behalf 

of each qualified employee for medical, dental & vision coverage. For those employees 

who have selected health coverage through PERS, from the monthly contribution set forth 

herein, effective January 1, 2021 a $143.00 per month contribution will be paid to PERS 

for what is sometimes referred to as “employer contribution”. This amount is the minimum 

amount required by PERS, recognizing that state law may increase this minimum from 

time to time requiring compliance by City.  The City’s maximum contribution below is 

inclusive of the required PEMCHA minimum.   

 

 
 

Effective Dates Employee Only Employee +1 Employee +2 

First full pay period 

after ratification 

$800.00 $1,400.00 $1,800.00 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 28

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

9 
 

First full pay period in 

July 2022 

$850.00 $1,450.00 $1,850.00 

First Full pay period in 

July 2023 

$900.00 $1,500.00 $1,900.00 

 

 

 

B.   Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that: they have equivalent group 

health coverage for medical (including dental & vision), which will remain in effect until 

the next enrollment date will be eligible for a cash payment based on the following 

schedule.  A “Current Grandfathered Employee” is defined as an employee hired prior to 

the ratification of the MOU and receiving cash-in lieu of health coverage.  Current 

Grandfathered Employees who choose health coverage after the ratification of the MOU 

will no longer be eligible for the Current Grandfathered Employee cash payment amount 

after making such choice of health coverage. 

 

Effective Dates Current 

Grandfathered 

Employees (as of 

effective date of the 

MOU)  

Non- Current 

Grandfathered 

Employees and New 

Employees 

First full pay period 

after ratification 

$500.00 $250.00 

 

C.    The City reserves the option of adding additional programs to the cafeteria plan, as 

they may become available.  The City will enable interested employees to participate in 

union sponsored medical plans.  

 

ARTICLE 13.00 INSURANCE 

 
The City provides full time members of the Association term life insurance in the 
amount of $50,000, short-term, and long-term disability insurance. 

ARTICLE 14.00 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

 

14.01  EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY 

After successful completion of the probationary period, sworn police personnel and the 
Records Manager shall be eligible to have base pay increased by an additional two and 

one-half (2.5%) for completion of thirty (30) college units, five (5%) percent for 
completion of sixty (60) college units, and seven and a half (7.5%) percent for completion 
of a bachelor’s degree from an accredited institution. College units may include graduate 

level work. Courses and degrees must be work related as approved by the Department 
Head and City Manager. 

 To receive Educational Incentive, Pay, the Employee shall write a memo to his/her 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 29

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

10 
 

supervisor and include a copy of transcripts as evidence of the number of units required 
for the appropriate incentive pay. The supervisor will review the memo and send it to the 

Police Chief, who, in turn, will review it and send it to the City Manager for approval. 

14.02  SWORN EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 

Beginning July 1, 2008, the education incentive is limited to a maximum of $500 per 
year per employee; beginning July 1, 2009 the limited maximum amount will increase to 
$1,000 per year per employee, with 100% textbook reimbursement. It is agreed by the 

City and the Association to negotiate in good faith on this provision upon the termination 
of the Memorandum of Understanding. 

14.03  COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICE EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 

Community Service Officer Education Reimbursement: Beginning July 1, 2008, the City 

will reimburse employees for tuition upon the completion of courses with a grade C or 

better, approved in advance by the City Manager, up to a maximum of $500 per calendar 

year for classes completed in that same calendar year. Beginning July 1, 2009, the limited 

maximum amount will increase to $1,000 per year per employee, with 100% textbook 

reimbursement. 

14.05  P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - POLICE SERGEANTS 

Sergeants shall be eligible to receive 2.5% increase in base pay for completion of the 
intermediate P.O.S.T. Certificate; an additional 2.5% for completion of the Advanced 
P.O.S.T. Certificate; and an additional 2.5% for completion of the P.O.S.T. Supervisory 

Certificate provided the employee has an A.A., A.S. or equivalent Degree. This Certificate 
Pay may not be collected in addition to education incentive pay. This program became 
effective 7-1-85. 

To receive P.O.S.T. pay, the Sergeant shall write a memo to his/her supervisor including 

a copy of the appropriate P.O.S.T. Certificate. The Supervisor shall review the memo 
and send it to the Police Chief, who, in turn, shall review it and send it to the City 
Manager for review, and, if approved, it will be effective the first of the month after 

approval. 

14.06  CAREER OFFICER PROGRAM - POLICE OFFICERS ONLY 

In accordance with standards set by Personnel Directive #4 dated November 15, 1988 the 
City agrees to compensate police officers qualifying under the career officer program by 
increasing base pay rates in the following percentages: 

Senior Officer I  2.5% 

Senior Officer II Additional 2.5% more than Senior Officer I 

Master Officer Additional 2.5% more than Senior Officer II 

An officer is eligible for either the Educational Incentive Program or for the Career Officer 

Program but may not receive payment under both programs. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 30

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

11 
 

ARTICLE 15.00 CALLBACK PAY - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE SERGEANTS AND 

RECORDS MANAGER 

 
Any Police Officer or Police Sergeant who has departed from his/her work location and is 
called back to work shall be guaranteed a minimum of four hours compensation at the 

overtime rate for each call-back. If the employee is no longer needed and at the employee’s 
request, he/she can leave the work location and be paid at overtime rates for time actually 
worked. When called back, the canine officer and Detectives will receive a minimum of two 

hours pay at the overtime rate regardless of the number of hours actually worked. All hours 
worked in excess of the minimum call back shall be paid at overtime rates. 

 

ARTICLE 16.00 NIGHT DIFFERENTIAL - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE 

SERGEANTS & RECORDS MANAGER 

 
The Employer shall compensate Police Officers, Police Sergeants and Records Manager 
who on a regularly scheduled basis work fifty percent (50%) or more per month of their 
time on swing or graveyard shift, a night differential pay of $.50 per hour for hours worked 

on swing shift, and $.75 per hour for hours worked on graveyard shift. Temporary 
assignments or emergency assignments for a short period of time and not on a regularly 
scheduled basis shall not be eligible for night differential pay. 

 

ARTICLE 17.00 COURT APPEARANCES 

Any employee who is required to testify in court in connection with an employee’s usual, 

official duties, or in connection with a case in which the City is a party, during his normal 
working hours shall be allowed to do so without any loss of pay. For hours in court outside 
of normal assigned duty hours, employees shall be compensated for a minimum of four (4) 

hours pay at time and a half pay. If notice of cancellation is made to employee either 
through the recorded telephone message from the court or from the officer’s personal voice 
mailbox by 6:00 p.m. the day prior to scheduled appearance, no payment will be made. 

ARTICLE 18.00 TRAINING OFFICER COMPENSATION 

Those positions designated by the Police Chief as Field Training Officer or Patrol Training 
Officer shall receive an additional five percent (5%) of salary, or pro-rated portion thereof, 
per month for the period actually engaged in training. 

ARTICLE 19.00 SPECIALTY PAY 

 

19.01 DETECTIVE PAY  

 Individuals assigned to the Detective Bureau shall be additionally compensated at the rate 
of five (5%) percent of base pay for performing detective duties. It is understood that this 
assignment is a rotational one and movement from the Detective Bureau shall not be 

considered a disciplinary action unless done for disciplinary reasons. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 31

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

12 
 

19.02 CANINE PAY  

 Police Officers assigned as Canine Officers will receive additional compensation at the rate 
of five (5%) percent of base pay for the care and maintenance of their dog, whether the 

actual time is slightly more or less than that. The parties mutually agree that this is adequate 
for care and maintenance. 

19.03 LONGEVITY PAY  

  Upon completion of ten (10) continuous years of service with the City, all employees 

covered by this MOU will receive additional compensation of five (5) percent of base pay. 
Effective the first full pay period after Union ratification and Council adoption of this 
MOU, upon completion of  twenty (20)  continuous years of service with the City of 

Capitola, all employees covered by this MOU will receive additional compensation of and 
additional five (5%) percent of base pay.  

19.04   MOTORCYCLE PATROL PAY 

  Police Officers assigned by the Department to Motor Cycle Patrol will receive additional 

compensation at the rate of two and one half (2.5%) percent of base pay while in that 
assignment in full time status.  

ARTICLE 20.00 ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION 

20.01   FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO A HIGHER LEVEL VACANCY 

An employee specifically assigned on a temporary basis to a higher level position shall be 
compensated at the pay rate for the higher level position if the service in such position 

exceeds a total of twenty days at any one time in any twelve-month period, which payment 
shall be retroactive to the first day of such services; provided, however, that the employee 
meets the minimum qualifications for the higher level position and the full range of duties 

of the higher level position is assigned. The out-of-title pay level shall be the lowest step 
of the salary schedule of the temporarily assigned position that will provide a salary 
increase of at least 5%. 

20.02   POSITIONS DESIGNATED BILINGUAL 

Upon the recommendation of the Police Chief or his designated representative and the 

approval of the City Manager, no more than two persons occupying a position designated 
as requiring fluency in a language other than English shall receive an additional five percent 
(5%) of salary. 

20.03 Deferred Compensation. All PEPRA employees covered by this Agreement shall be 

eligible to participate in a deferred compensation program, upon request. The City will 

contribute $25.00 per pay period. 

 

ARTICLE 21.00 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

21.01   LEAVE MAY NOT EXCEED ONE YEAR 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 32

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

13 
 

A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager upon the request of 
the employee seeking such leave. Each request will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

21.02   NO LEAVE TO ACCEPT OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

A leave of absence without pay may not be granted to a person accepting either private or 

public employment outside the service of the City of Capitola. 

21.03   MILITARY LEAVE 

The Employer agrees to provide employees all military leave benefits guaranteed under 
federal, state and case law. 

21.04   LEAVE FOR JURY DUTY 

Leave of absence with pay shall be granted to a person while serving on jury duty, including 
time spent going to and from court and serving on jury duty.  Any jury fee awarded to such 

person shall be deposited with the City Treasurer.  Any person assigned to an afternoon or 
evening shift shall be entitled to equal time off leave with pay from his or her next regularly 
scheduled shift for all time spent while going to and from court and serving jury duty. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 22.00 VACATION 

 

22.01 ACCRUAL 

Effective 12/1/00, all employees in this unit shall accrue vacation as set forth in the following 
chart. The rates shown are for full time employees. On the effective date of this plan, all 
employees in the unit are full time. If a position hereafter is occupied on less than a full 

time basis, the rates of accrual will be adjusted as set forth in Section 4 (b) of the attached 
standard provisions. The rate at which vacation accrues is not affected by whether or not 
overtime is worked in a pay period. Vacation accrues while on sick leave, except that it 

does not accrue after the date of separation. Employees working 4/10 schedules and those 
working 5/8 schedules will both be debited for 40 hours of vacation for each complete week 
(Sunday through Saturday) of vacation taken. For partial weeks, a 4/10 employee will be 

debited 10 hours for each day of vacation taken that the employee would have been 
scheduled to work if vacation had not been taken; 8 hours for 5/8 employees. 

 Year of Service  Number of Hours/Years 

1 80 
2 80 
3 100 

4 100 
5 120 
6 130 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 33

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

14 
 

7 140 
8-9 150 

10-14 160 
15-17 170 
18-19 180 

20+ 200   

An employee is in the first ‘year of service” from the first through the 365th day of 
employment and (except leap years) on the 366th day is in the second year of service. 

22.02 VACATION – MANDATORY CASH OUT  

An employee who has accumulated more than 504 hours as of the last pay period in April 

of any year shall be paid in cash at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly pay rate 
for all hours in excess of 504 except that such payment shall not exceed the employees 
annual vacation accrual amount These cash out payments will be included with the 

paycheck for the first full pay period in May. 

22.03 VACATION CASH OUT ON TERMINATION 

Upon termination, an employee shall be paid for all accumulated vacation to the separation 
date, at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly pay rate. 

 

22.04 VACATION ACCRUAL AND USAGE BEGINNING DATES 

Vacation will begin to accrue as of the date of employment. An employee may take 
vacation upon the completion of one year of service. 

22.05 MAXIMUM/MINIMUM ANNUAL VACATION LEAVE 

In all instances, the Employee shall have the right to take the earned equivalent of one 

year’s vacation accumulation at one time. In the event the Employee wishes to take more 
than one year’s accumulation, approval of the supervisor is required. 

22.06 EFFECT ON LEAVE WITHOUT PAY ON VACATION CREDIT 

No vacation credit shall be earned during the period when an employee is absent on leave 

without pay. 

22.07.01 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - ALL EMPLOYEES BUT 

SERGEANTS AND RECORDS SUPERVISOR 

On December 1st of each year, the Patrol Captain and POA President will post a vacation 
schedule calendar. All such employees will pick one “major” block of vacation in order of 

seniority. All vacation picks will be made with regard to Section 21.07.03 of this 
Memorandum and current Department policy. The calendar will be submitted to the Patrol 
Captain no later than January 15th. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 34

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

15 
 

Other vacation requests will be submitted in accordance with current practice and seniority 
will prevail in the event of conflicts between employees. The POA President and the 

Association will handle all conflicts. 

22.07.02 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - SERGEANTS AND RECORDS 

SUPERVISOR 

The Police Chief or his designated representative shall in each case determine when 
vacation leave may be taken. Sergeants and records supervisors shall be allowed to divide 

their vacation leave in any calendar year into segments. 

 

22.07.03 VACATION CONFLICTS 

 Seniority in the City service among employees in a classification and working unit, 

consistent with department operating requirements, shall be the basis on which vacation 
schedule conflicts are resolved. In any calendar year, the first such conflict’ shall be 
resolved in favor of the most senior employee. Subsequent vacation schedule conflicts shall 

be resolved in favor of the most senior employee who has not, by virtue of his senior 
position, previously had such a conflict resolved in his favor during the calendar year. In 
the event of vacation schedule conflicts among such employees, all of whom have, by 

virtue of their senior positions, had such conflicts resolved in their favor during the calendar 
year, the senior employee who has had the least number of such conflicts resolved in his 
favor shall prevail. Vacation leave can be started on any day of the week. 

22.08 RATE OF VACATION PAY 

Compensation during vacation shall be at the rate of compensation that such person would 
have been entitled to receive if working at the time vacation occurs. 

ARTICLE 23.00 SICK LEAVE 

 

23.01 ACCRUAL 

Sick leave accrues at rate of 120 hours per year for sworn officers and Community Service 

Officers, and all unit employees working a 5/8 shift including Detectives and the Records 
Manager shall accrue ninety-six (96) hours of sick leave per year. The rate at which ‘sick 
leave accrues is not affected by whether or not overtime is worked in a pay period. Sick 

leave accrues on a prorated basis, based upon a 30-day month. Accrued but unused sick 
leave has no cash value and shall not be cashed out. 

23.02 LABOR CODE SECTION 4850 

Nothing in this article will be deemed to supersede Labor Code Section 4850. 

23.03 SICK LEAVE USAGE 

A 4/10 employee will be debited 10 hours for each day of sick leave taken that the employee 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 35

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

16 
 

would have been scheduled to work if sick leave had not been taken; 8 hours for a 5/8 

employee. 

23.04 MEDICAL REPORT 

To the maximum extent allowable under the Family and Medical leave Act and the Family 
Rights Act, the Police Chief, as a condition, of granting sick leave with pay, may require 

medical evidence of sickness or injury acceptable to the Police Chief, which may include 
a statement of diagnosis and treatment from a licensed physician or a medical clearance to 
return to work. Absent exceptional circumstances, no medical evidence will be requested 

for absences of three or less consecutive days. 

23.05 EMERGENCY LEAVE: SICKNESS IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY 

Leave of absence with pay because of sickness or injury or disability in the immediate 

family of an employee may be granted by the Police Chief during the time reasonably 

necessary to care for the sick person or arrange for care of the sick person by others, but 

not to exceed the amount of accrued sick leave of such person.  Time taken for leave of 

absence under the provisions of this subsection shall be deducted from the accrued sick 

leave of such person.  For the purposes of this subsection “immediate family” means 

mother, step-mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, son, step-son, daughter, step-

daughter, foster parent, foster child, or any person sharing the relationship of in loco 

parentis; and when living in the household of the employee, a brother, sister, brother-in-

law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents. The chief’s discretionary 

authority under this section does not lessen any employee rights under the FMLA or CFRA. 

23.06  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

Leave of absence with pay because of death in the immediate family of an employee shall 

be granted for a period not to exceed three days. Entitlement to leave of absence under this 

section shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick leave, or any other leave. For 

purposes of this section, “immediate family” means mother, step-mother, father, step 

father, husband, wife, son, step-son, daughter, step-daughter, brother, sister, foster parent, 

foster child, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents. 

ARTICLE 24.00 WAGES & EMPLOYMENT STATUS (SEE ATTACHMENT A) 

 

All wages for employees covered by this Agreement shall be paid in accordance with the 

provisions of the attached wage schedule and progression through the steps will be in 

accordance with Article 24.05. 

24.01. WAGES SCHEDULES/HOURLY RATES 

 The wage schedules contained in, or attached to, this Memorandum of Understanding set 

forth the base pay, subject to such adjustments (such as longevity pay) as are specifically 

set forth in this MOU. Letters, such as “A” to “F”, designate the respective pay steps for 

each position. The rates contained in the wage schedule do not include overtime or benefits. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 36

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

17 
 

  Whenever it is necessary to compute an hourly pay rate in order to apply any provision of 
this MOU, that will be done by multiplying any monthly rate by 12 in order to derive an 

annual rate, and dividing the annual rate by 2080 (or proportionate number of hours for 
part time positions, e.g., 1040 for a half-time position). 

24.02. SERVICE 

The word “service” as used in this Memorandum of Understanding means continuous full-

time service in the position in which the employee is being considered for salary 

advancement, service in a higher position, or service in a position allocated to the same 

salary schedule and having generally similar duties and requirements. A lapse of service of 

any employee for a period of time longer than thirty days by reason of resignation or 

discharge shall serve to eliminate the accumulated length of service time of such employee, 

and any such employee re-entering the service of the City shall be considered as a new 

employee. 

24.03. TYPES OF APPOINTMENT 

a. Probationary Appointment 

A probationary appointment is for a specified period of time, during which job 

performance is evaluated as a basis for subsequent regular appointment 

b. Regular Appointments 

A regular appointment ordinarily follows successful completion of a probationary 

period. “Regular” means a position that is, regardless of the number of hours worked 

per week, intended to be continuous and uninterrupted (except for authorized paid or 

unpaid leave). Positions intended to be seasonal, of a limited term, on call only, 

emergency, intermittent, substitute, or on any other irregular basis are not “regular.” 

The positions set forth in the wage schedule are all regular positions, and unless 

specifically stated, the pay rate is applicable to a full-time position. All positions 

covered by this section are half time or more. 

c. Acting appointments 

An acting appointment occurs when an employee is temporarily assigned to, and 

performs all the duties of, a position other than the position he/she normally occupies, 
or when an employee is assigned an acting appointment pending evaluation of the 
employee’s ability to perform the duties of the position. 

d. Accruals for part time positions 

When a position is less than full time it will be classified by a fraction. For example, 
“half-time” regular employment is expected to average 20 hours per week, “three-

quarters” employment is expected to average 30 hours per week. Vacation accrual, sick 
leave accrual, Flex Plan contributions, holidays, personal holidays are paid or accrued 
according to these classifications. Thus, compared to a full-time employee, a half-time 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 37

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

18 
 

employee, even if actual time occasionally exceeds or falls below 20 hours in a week, 
when compared to a full time employee: receives one-half the Flex Plan contribution; 

accrues one-half the number of hours of vacation or sick leave; and is paid for four 
hours on a holiday or personal holiday. 

24.04. BEGINNING SALARY RATES 

A new employee’s base pay shall be computed by using the rate shown as step “A” in 

the schedule allocated to the class of employment for which the employee has been 
hired, except that upon recommendation of the department head under whom the 
employee will serve and with the approval of the City Manager, such new employee 

may be employed at a higher step, depending upon the employee’s qualifications. 

24.05. ADVANCEMENT WITHIN THE SCHEDULE  

The following provisions govern salary advancement within the schedule: 

a. Probationary advancement 

Upon successful completion of probation, an employee (except an employee that was 

hired at the top step) will advance one step. 

b. Regular Merit advancement 

An employee may be considered for advancement upon completion of the minimum 
length of service specified for step increases. Unless specifically otherwise stated, this 
will be 12 months for full-time appointments and proportionately adjusted for other 

appointments. For instance, half-time appointments will be evaluated for regular merit 
adjustments every 24 months. Advancement to higher steps shall be granted only for 
continued meritorious and efficient service and continued improvement by the 

employee in the effective performance of the duties of the position held. 

c. Special Merit advancement 

When an employee consistently demonstrates exceptional ability and proficiency in the 

performance of assigned duties, the supervising department head may recommend to 
the City Manager that said employee be advanced to a higher pay step without regard 
to the minimum length of service provisions contained in this MOU. The City Manager 

may approve and effect such advancement. 

d. Denial of advancement 

When an employee has not been approved for advancement to the next higher wage 

step, such employee may be reconsidered for such advancement after the completion 
of three months of additional service. 

24.06. PROMOTION TO A NEW POSITION 

When an employee is promoted to a position in a higher classification, such employee shall 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 38

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

19 
 

be assigned to step “A” in the appropriate schedule for the higher classification. However, 

if such employee is already being paid at a rate equal to or higher than step “A”, he/she 

shall be placed in the step in the appropriate salary schedule which will grant such 

employee a salary increase of not less than 5%. 

24.07. EFFECTIVE DATE OF A PAY INCREASE  

A merit pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day of the 

pay period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily completed. All 

other pay rate changes, except those given a specific calendar date herein, shall become 

effective at the beginning of a two week pay period as approved by the City Manager. 

24.08 PAY INCREASE SCHEDULE 

• Effective the first pay period after union ratification and Council approval of the 

MOU in accordance with the Brown Act, the salary ranges for all classifications 

in this Unit shall be increased as follows: 

▪ Sworn employees (Police Officer and Police Sergeant)- 3.0% 

▪ CSO- 1.0% 

▪ Records Manager- 2.0% 

 

• Effective the first full pay period of July 2022, the salary ranges for all 

classifications in this Unit shall be increased as follows: 

▪ Sworn employees (Police Officer and Police Sergeant)- 3.0% 

▪ CSO- 1.0% 

▪ Records Manager- 2.25% 

 

• Effective the first full pay period of July 2023, the salary ranges for all 

classifications in this Unit shall be increased as follows: 

▪ Sworn employees (Police Officer and Police Sergeant)- 3.0% 

▪ CSO- 1.0% 

▪ Records Manager- 2.25% 

 

 

Additionally, upon ratification, all sworn personnel (Police Officer and Police 

Sergeant) shall receive a one-time market salary study increase of 1.25% effective 

upon ratification. 

 

ARTICLE 25.00  GRIEVANCES 

 

25.01 DEFINITION 

A grievance is defined as an allegation by an employee or group of employees that the 

Employer has failed to provide a condition of employment, which is established by law, 

Memorandum of Understanding, by written City or departmental rules, provided that the 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 39

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

20 
 

enjoyment of such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Police Chief or the 

Employer by the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding and, provided further, that 

the conditions of employment which is the subject matter within the scope of representation 

as defined in California Government Code Section 3504. 

25.02 DEPARTMENT REVIEW AND ADJUSTMENT OF GRIEVANCES 

The following is the procedure to be followed in the resolution of grievances. 

25.02.01 An employee ‘having a grievance shall have the right to consult with and be 

assisted by a representative of his own choice in this and all succeeding steps of 

this subparagraph 23.02 and may thereafter file a grievance in writing with his 

immediate supervisor. Within five actual working days after receipt of any 

written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall return a copy of the written 

grievance to the employee with his answer thereto, in writing. 

If the grievance is not resolved at the first level, the employee shall have five 
actual working days after receipt of the answer within which to file an appeal 
with the Captain. The Captain shall have five actual working days in which to 

review and answer the grievance in writing. If the grievance is not resolved at 
this second level, the employee shall have five actual working days after receipt 
of the answer within which to file an appeal with the Police Chief. The Police 

Chief shall have five actual working days in which to review and answer the 
grievance in writing. If the grievance is not resolved at this third level, the 
employee shall have five actual working days from receipt of the answer within 

which to file an appeal with the City Manager. 

25.02.02 The City Manager shall have five actual working days in which to review, and 
if necessary, hold hearings, and answer the grievance in writing. Unless waived 
by the mutual agreement of the employee or his representative and the City 

Manager, a hearing is required at this step, and the employee, and his 
representative, shall have the right to be present at, and participate in such 
hearing. The time limit at this step may be extended by mutual agreement 

between the City Manager and the employee or his representative. The Union 
may, in its own name, file a grievance alleging that the Employer has failed to 
provide it some organizational right which is established by law, provided that 

such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Police Chief or Employer. 
Such Union grievances shall be filed with the City Manager and heard and 
determined pursuant to the provisions of this step of the grievance procedure. 

25.02.03 In the event that the grievance is not resolved at the City Manager’s level, the 

Employee may, within ten (10) working days, request that the grievance be 
heard by the City Council. 

25.03 EFFECT OF FAILURE OF TIMELY ACTION 

Failure of the employee to file an appeal within the required time limit at any step shall 
constitute an abandonment of the grievance. Failure of the Employer to respond within the 

time limit at any step shall result in an automatic advancement of the grievance to the next 
step. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 40

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

21 
 

25.04 LIMITATION ON STALE GRIEVANCES 

A grievance shall be void unless presented within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the 
day upon which the Employer has allegedly failed to provide a condition of employment, 

or within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the time at which an employee might 
reasonably have been expected to have learned of such alleged failure to provide. In no 
event shall any grievance include a claim for money relief for more than the twenty-one-

day period plus such reasonable discovery period. 

25.05 EXCLUSION OF NON-RECOGNIZED ORGANIZATIONS 

For the purpose of this section, the provisions of Article 4.00 of this Agreement shall not 
be construed to limit the employee’s right of selection of a representative to the extent that 
the agents of any other employee organization which is not party to this Agreement, are 

specifically excluded from so acting. In those cases in which an employee elects to 
represent himself or arranges for other representation, Association shall have the right to 
participate in the resolution procedure for the purpose of protecting the interest of its 

members in negotiated conditions of employment. 

ARTICLE 26.00 DEPARTMENTAL VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

 

26.01 Patrol Vehicles (Defined). Any motor vehicle as defined under the provisions of Sections 

415 and 165 of the California Vehicle Code. 

26.02 All necessary repairs and maintenance of vehicles (as defined ‘in Section 25.01) shall be 
performed as necessary to insure the safety of the operator of the vehicle. 

26.03 Under no circumstances will a Supervisor or the Department require an employee to 
operate an unsafe patrol vehicle or other equipment. 

26.04 An employee may refuse to operate a vehicle that is unsafe. The watch commander shall 

determine the vehicle’s condition upon an employee complaining of safety hazards. The 
patrol vehicle shall not be used until repaired if a determination is made of safety problems. 

26.05 Routine maintenance of a patrol vehicle shall be no less than required by the manufacturer. 

Only high-quality parts and tires will be used on the vehicles. 

26.06 Capitola Police Officers’ Association may review and make recommendations on any new 
patrol or emergency vehicle purchased or leased by the City for use by its members prior 

to putting out bids for purchase purposes. 

26.07 Any equipment necessary for the safety of any operator shall be provided for the 
departmental vehicles. 

26.08 All patrol vehicles will be fitted as nearly as practical with identical controls for 
activating emergency lighting, siren and communication equipment. As new equipment is 
purchased, every effort will be made to locate the controls in the same general area in the 

patrol vehicle. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 41

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

22 
 

ARTICLE 27.00 RETIREMENT - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

27.01 CLASSIC MISCELLANEOUS 

The City participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 

operated by the State of California. Benefits provided are detailed in separate 

publications, depending upon the plan. City agrees to provide 2.5% at 55 Retirement Plan 

for Classic Miscellaneous employees in the Unit and the single-highest-year option. 

Upon ratification, all Classic Miscellaneous employees shall contribute 13.392% of their 

reportable salary to CalPERS.  This contribution shall not be reduced or increased unless 

negotiated by the parties in future negotiations. 

27.02 CLASSIC SWORN 

The City participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 

operated by the State of California. Benefits provided are detailed in separate 

publications, depending upon the plan. City agrees to provide 3% at 50 Retirement Plan 

for Classic Safety employees in the Unit.  

Upon ratification, all Classic Sworn employees shall contribute 14.974% of their 

reportable salary to CalPERS.  This contribution shall not be reduced or increased unless 

negotiated by the parties in future negotiations. 

27.05 PERS CREDIT 

The City shall expeditiously implement the PERS Credit for Unused Sick Leave and 

employee paid Military Service Credit options. 

27.06 PEPRA EMPLOYEES 

Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act for Safety Employees hired by the City on or 

after January 1, 2013 and who do not qualify as Classic members as determined by 

CalPERS, are considered PEPRA Employees. CalPERS has by statute implement a 2.7% 

@ 55 pension formula, based on a three-year average compensation. Employees in this 

category shall pay minimum of 50% of the normal cost rate as determined by CalPERS. 

Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) for Miscellaneous Employees hired by 

the City on or after January 1, 2013 and who do not qualify as Classic members as 

determined by CalPERS, are considered PEPRA Employees.   CalPERS has by statute 

implemented a 2.0% @ 62 pension formula, based on a three-year average compensation. 

Employees in this category shall pay 50% of the normal cost rate as determined by 

CalPERS. 

ARTICLE 28.00 PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS 

 
City agrees to pay up to $100 over the amount covered by the health insurance for an annual 
physical exam. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 42

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

23 
 

ARTICLE 29.00 FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993 

 

The City shall follow the provisions provided for family leave as specified in the federal 

Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), and the California Family Rights Act 

(CFRA) as they apply to public employers. 

ARTICLE 30.00 MISCELLANEOUS 

 
30.01 POA agrees to waive the Police Department’s past practice of giving a 30-day notice for 

the current shift change. 

30.02 During the term of this Agreement, each sworn employee that, in response to the Chief’s 

directive, purchased a tape recorder before 2/15/01 will be reimbursed up to forty ($40) of 
the recorder’s cost. After that date the City will choose between either supplying such 
recorders or reimbursing the employee up to $40 for such recorders. 

ARTICLE 31.00 DRUG POLICY 

 

 The City has adopted Administrative Policy Number II-6 “USE OF ALCOHOL/DRUGS 

DURING HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT; POSSESSION OF ALCOHOL/DRUGS IN/ON 

PROPERTY; ADVERSE EFFECTS OF USE OF ALCOHOL/DRUGS OUTSIDE HOURS 

OF EMPLOYMENT ON JOB PERFORMANCE”.   

 

ARTICLE 32.00 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) 

 

 All positions included in this Memorandum of Understanding are covered by appropriate 

sections of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1935, as amended. 

32.01 SECTION 207(K) AGREEMENT 

A. The City shall exercise its rights under 29 USC section 207(k) to use a 14-day work period 

and 86-hour threshold for FLSA overtime purposes.  Accordingly, FLSA overtime shall 

only be paid when an employee actually works more than 86 hours in 14 days. 

B. Investigators will not receive overtime simply for working their regular schedule (4x9-hr, 

1x8-hr + 4x9hr) each 14 days. 

C. Contractual overtime shall be paid for all hours worked beyond any employee’s regularly 

scheduled hours on a daily or bi-weekly basis.  So any additional hours worked in excess 

of 80 hours biweekly for investigators and 40 hours per week for other employees shall be 

paid as contractual overtime until the requirement to pay FLSA overtime applies.  For 

example, if an employee works 80 hours of regularly–scheduled work in 14 days and 20 

hours of overtime, the first 6 hours of overtime would be contractual overtime with the 

remaining 14 being FLSA overtime.   

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 43

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

24 
 

D. “Hours worked” for FLSA purposes, shall include regular and holiday hours, as well as 

sick, vacation, or compensated leave scheduled in advance by at least ten days. 

E. For eligible employees, FLSA overtime shall include the cash-in-lieu and other required 

premiums in the “regular rate of pay”.  Contractual overtime will include all premiums 

used in the regular rate of pay except cash-in-lieu of medical contribution. 

ARTICLE 34.00 PERSONNEL RULES 

 

The City retains the right to amend and create personnel rules, provided they are not in 

conflict with specific provisions of this MOU. Where appropriate, City will meet and confer 

with applicable employee group or groups consistent with the MMBA requirement 

(Government Code Section 3500 and following), before amending or creating new personnel 

rules. 

ARTICLE 35.00 LAYOFF PROCEDURES  

 

Layoffs shall be governed by Personnel Rule 12, in addition, all sworn members of this unit, 

if being reinstated after a layoff, must be certified by a physician as able to fully perform the 

duties of the sworn position.  The member may choose their own physician, or at the 

member’s request the City will pay for its choice of physician.  The sworn member must 

have a current basic POST certificate prior to reinstatement. 

ARTICLE 36.00 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT  

 
Employees required to use their personal vehicles while on City business will be reimbursed 
at the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service. 

ARTICLE 37.00 SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid by operation of law or by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with enforcement of any provision shall be 

restrained by any tribunal the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, 

and the parties shall enter into negotiations for the sole purpose of arriving at a mutually 

satisfactory replacement for such provision. 

ARTICLE 38.00 ENACTMENT 

This Memorandum will be effective on upon ratification.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF CAPITOLA    CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOC. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 44

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

25 
 

 

       ________________________________ 

 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 

Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager       ________________________________  

 

       ________________________________ 

 

________________________________  _________________________________ 

Date        Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 8.G 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.A

Packet Pg. 45

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
A

.	I
te

m
 8

.G
 –

 t
w

o
 s

ta
ff

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 a

tt
ac

h
m

en
ts

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: AnnMarie@CapitolaWineBar.com
Sent: Monday, August 23, 2021 5:00 PM
To: City Council
Cc: Doug
Subject: Outdoor Dining in the Village beyond September 13th

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Hello, 

Thanks again for letting us have outdoor dinning in the village. It has made our village more charming 
than ever. 

Last year, when we were granted the space for outdoor dinning in June, the city council said we could 
have the space through Labor Day. This year, we are hearing the same; with the exception of we can 
have it through Art & Wine, so September 13th. Last year it was difficult to plan accordingly when we, the 
business owners, weren't sure if we were going to keep the space or not for any length of time. Upkeep as 
well as new expenditures for the parklet is an expense that can be deferred if we aren't going to be able 
keep these parklets any later than September 13th. 

It would be great to extend through the end of October or even later. As you all know, September and 
October are fabulous months in the village. Ideally, we would like to continue with outdoor dining until the 
next solution comes along after the January 2022 Coastal Commission meeting. This would make it easier 
on the businesses to deal with the excess outdoor furniture that was purchased, instead of finding 
temporary storage solutions. 

Thanks for listening, 

--  
Ann Marie Conrad
Owner
Capitola Wine Bar & Merchants

www.capitolawinebar.com
instagram.com/capitolawinebar
facebook.com/capitolawinebar

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 9.A 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.B

Packet Pg. 46

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

.	I
te

m
 9

.A
 –

 t
w

o
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
em

ai
ls

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



1

Woodmansee, Chloe

From: Melissa <serritenomeli@hotmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 26, 2021 12:46 PM
To: City Council
Subject: Capitola Village Outdoor Seating

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Capitola City Council‐ 
Hope everyone is doing well. We are Melissa and Carlos Pacheco. We are the owners of Caruso’s Restaurant.  
First of all we would like to thank The City Of Capitola for all of the support that we have received during these difficult 
times. If it wasn’t for the Outdoor Dinning I don’t think we would have survived Covid.  
It has been one of the best things that has happened to Capitola Village. Every customer that comes to our restaurant 
raves about how awesome it is to have Outdoor Dinning. They say it reminds them of Europe. Summer has been great. 
But now with everything changing. We are really concerned about The Delta Variant.  
Our biggest concern is that if the Outdoor Dinning is removed on September 13, and Delta Variant cases rise. Then 
indoor dining will be shut down and we will not have any Outdoor Dinning to provide for our guest. This will make 
everything very difficult for our business because our sales will go down and we will have to go back to square one. 
During the fall we still have beautiful weather and tourist still visit Capitola Village. I feel that removing the Outdoor 
Dinning will affect our business and our village.  
Please take into consideration our request and we would really appreciate it. 
 
Sincerely  
Melissa and Carlos Pacheco  
Caruso’s Owners 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS - ITEM 9.A 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 8/26/2021 4.B

Packet Pg. 47

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

.	I
te

m
 9

.A
 –

 t
w

o
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
en

t 
em

ai
ls

  (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the July 22 City Council Meeting Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review and approval are the minutes from the regular City 

Council meeting held on July 22, 2021. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 7-22-21 draft 
 

Report Prepared By:   Chloe Woodmansee 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 48



 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, JULY 22, 2021 - 7 PM 

   CLOSED SESSION 

 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  

(Gov’t Code § 54957.6) 
            Negotiators: Algeria Ford, Larry Laurent  

Employee Organizations: (1) Police Captains; (2) Capitola Police Officers Association 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Jacques Bertrand: Remote, Council Member Kristen Petersen: Absent, Vice Mayor 
Sam Storey: Remote, Mayor Yvette Brooks: Remote, Council Member Margaux Keiser: Remote. 

 2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
City Attorney Samantha Zutler announced there was no action taken.  

 3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

  A. Item 8.B – one staff provided attachment 

  B. Item 8.C – eight public comment emails  

 4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 5. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS – NONE  

 6. STAFF / CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS  

  
Council Member Bertrand announced his resignation from the Area Agency on Aging.  
 
Council Member Keiser stated that the Commission on the Environment held a meeting, where they 
discussed gas powered leaf blowers and the increase in one-time-use to-go containers due to the 
pandemic. She reminded the public that these meetings are open to the public.  

 7. CONSENT ITEMS 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
2-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 22, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 7/27/2021 2:15 PM 

MOTION: APPROVE, DIRECT, AND ADOPT AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand 

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

A. Consider the June 24 City Council Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Approval of City Check Registers Dated June 4, June 11, June 18, June 25, and July 
2. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 

C. Community Grants Strategic Plan Contract 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Direct the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Optimal Solutions Consulting for $29,400 to develop a strategic plan to implement 
the process improvements to the Capitola Community Grant Program approved by 
the Council on February 13, 2020.  

D. 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Coordination Project Authorization to Advertise for 
Construction Bids 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the plans, specifications, and estimate for the 
41st Avenue Adaptive Signal Control project (estimated at $420,000) and authorize 
advertising for construction bids.  

E. Consider a Resolution Allocating the 2021/22 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Account Funds 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution allocating the 2021/22 
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funds to engineering and 
construction of a pavement management program project. 

 8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Receive Update on Pandemic Response 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the 
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to 
continue action. 

 
City Manager Jamie Goldstein presented the staff report.   
 
Vice Mayor Storey requested that active COVID-19 case numbers be included in the Friday 
Update to City Council.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 
Vice Mayor Storey urged the public to get vaccinated.  

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
2-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 22, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 7/27/2021 2:15 PM 

MOTION: DETERMINE THAT ALL HAZARDS STILL EXIST AND ACTION MUST 
CONTINUE  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Margaux Keiser, Council Member 

SECONDER: Sam Storey, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

B. Consider Capitola Village Banners Design 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Capitola Village Banners as recommended 
by the Capitola Art and Cultural Commission in partnership with the Capitola Beach 
and Village Improvement Association. 

 
Assistant to the City Manager Larry Laurent presented the staff report.  
 
Council Member Keiser asked if all sample banners will be hung in the village. Assistant Laurent 
explained that three or four of the examples would be used throughout the Village, though not 
along the Esplanade to avoid blocking the view of the ocean. Council Member Keiser remarked 
that the art on one banner looked particularly like a specific Village business.  
 
 
In public comment, Laurie Hill thanked the City and the Art and Cultural Commission for 
collaborating on this project. Alexander Pedersen said he supported the banners and 
complimented the art.  
 
Council Member Bertrand expressed concern about the imagery in one of the banners.   
  
Vice Mayor Storey stated that the Art and Cultural Commission unanimously approved the 
banners on July 13, 2021 for submittal to Council and thanked the artist for her work.  

 

MOTION: APPROVE THE CAPITOLA BANNERS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE ART 
AND CULTURAL COMMISSION  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Margaux Keiser 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

C. Parklet Program Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on additional details about the future 
village outdoor dining parklet program and extend the COVID-19 temporary use 
permits allowing for outdoor dining on Capitola Avenue, Monterey Avenue, and Lawn 
Way through September 13, 2021. 

 
Council Member Keiser recused herself due to a financial conflict.   
 
Community Development Director Katie Herlihy presented the staff report with Public Works 
Director Steve Jesberg. 
 
In response to a question from Mayor Brooks, Director Herlihy explained the recommended 
extension of temporary outdoor dining to September 13 was decided after speaking with the 
organizers of the Art and Wine Festival.    

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
2-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 22, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 7/27/2021 2:15 PM 

 
Regarding the coastal access/improvement costs, Council Member Bertrand confirmed that the 
cost of the Wharf maintenance did not include the upcoming special repairs. He also asked if bike 
racks alongside the parklets would be considered a benefit to coastal access by the Coastal 
Commission to which Director Herlihy replied yes. 
 
Vice-Mayor Storey confirmed that the Coastal Commission suggested restricting funds from 
parklet rentals for coastal access/improvements. In response to a second question, Director 
Jesberg explained that a parklet’s concrete slab would allow for eventual removal without street 
damage, and that the concrete would be installed with a gap between it in the curb to allow for 
drainage.  
 
In public comment, Darmush Patel spoke to his need for parking in front of the Village Hotel.  
Carrie Arnone, Chamber of Commerce, retracted her previous request for the temporary outdoor 
dining’s removal and said that the new extension to September 13 will work with the Art and Wine 
Festival. Josh Fisher thanked Council and Public Works staff for their work on the temporary 
outdoor dining.  
 
Vice-Mayor Storey thanked the Chamber for their input and encouraged staff to keep in mind that 
with rising COVID cases, the situation may need to be analyzed and extended through the fall.  

 

MOTION: EXTEND OUTDOOR DINING IN ALL CURRENT AREAS TO MONDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 13, 2021.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Yvette Brooks 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

RECUSED: Margaux Keiser 

D. Authorize the Advertisement of Construction Bids for the Wharf Rehabilitation Project 
- Phase 1 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the plans, specifications, and estimate for 
construction for the Wharf Rehabilitation Project, Phase 1 (estimated cost $482,500), 
and authorize Public Works to advertise for construction bids.   

 
Director Jesberg presented the staff report.  
 
In response to a question from Vice-Mayor Storey, Director Jesberg explained the process of 
filling the piles and the project’s timeline.  
 
In response to Council Member Bertrand, Director Jesberg stated that the piles currently support 
the Wharf, however they could fail in a storm, which is why repairs are timely.  
 
There was no public comment.  

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
2-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 22, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 7/27/2021 2:15 PM 

MOTION: APPROVE THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE AS 
RECOMMENDED  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

E. Library Lease Ordinance First Reading 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Determine the bid received from Santa Cruz County to lease the property at 2005 
Wharf Road, and operate and maintain the Capitola Library with a rent payment of 
one dollar per year offers the greatest economic return to the City; and  

2. Approve the first reading and waive reading of the text of the proposed uncodified 
Ordinance allowing the City to enter a lease with a term in excess of 55 years and 
authorizing a 99-year lease with Santa Cruz County for the Capitola Library. 

 
City Manager Goldstein presented a staff report.  
 
City Manager Goldstein confirmed that the library deck is considered part of the park and, is 
therefore maintained by the library system; he pointed out that the “tot lot” is considered a City 
park and is therefore excluded from the lease. In response to a question, the City Manager 
explained that policy decisions affecting the City are taken to the Library Advisory Committee on 
which the City is represented by Michael Termini.  
 
The City Manager confirmed that either he or the Public Works director will be considered the 
lease administrator. Vice-Mayor Storey asked about the lease and if certain fees should be 
present on the lease document; City Attorney Zutler responded that such fees are commonly left 
off lease documents to no detriment.  
 
Council Member Bertrand asked if the City can enforce the “library parking only” rule at this site. 
Director Jesberg responded that signs are present and the Police Department can enforce the 
rule.  

 

MOTION: 1) DETERMINE THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BID TO LEASE THE 
PROPERTY AT 2005 WHARF ROAD OFFERS THE GREATEST 
ECONOMIC RETURN AND 2) APPROVE THE FIRST READING OF THE 
UNCODIFIED ORDINANCE AS RECOMMENDED  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

F. Consider Bail Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021/22 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed Resolution repealing Resolution No. 
4149 and adopting the new bail schedule.  

 
The City Clerk presented the staff report.  
 
In response to a question from Council Member Bertrand, City Clerk Woodmansee explained that 
fines are calculated by comparing similar infractions and fines adopted by other local jurisdictions.  

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
2-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
July 22, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 6 Updated 7/27/2021 2:15 PM 

 
There was no public comment.  
 
After a discussion regarding tobacco compliance, Police Chief McManus emphasized that the 
base bail fine is a small piece of the entire enforcement effort and that escalating penalties to the 
licensee is a bigger deterrent.  

 

MOTION: ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AS RECOMMENDED  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser, Council Member 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

G. Designation of the Voting Delegate and Alternate for the 2021 League of California 
Cities Annual Conference[150-50] 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Designate voting delegate and alternate(s), if desired. 

 
The City Clerk presented the staff report.  
 
There was no public comment.  

 

MOTION: DESIGNATE JACQUES BERTRAND AS VOTING DELEGATE AND 
MARGAUX KEISER AS THE ALTERNATE VOTING DELEGATE; TO BE 
FULLY REIMBURSED OUT OF THE FY2021-22 TRAINING BUDGET 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser, Council Member 

AYES: Jacques Bertrand, Sam Storey, Yvette Brooks, Margaux Keiser 

ABSENT: Kristen Petersen 

 9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:10PM to the next regular City Council meeting on August 26, 2021.  

 

   _____________________ 
    Yvette Brooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
2-

21
 d

ra
ft

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

 C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission Action Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes.  
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review are the action minutes of the Planning Commission’s 
regular meetings on May 6, 2021, and July 15, 2021.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. PC 05.06.21 Action Minutes  
2. PC 07.15.21 Action Minutes DRAFT 

 
Report Prepared By:   Edna Basa 
 Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 55



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 5/7/2021 1:35 PM  

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Routh called the meeting to order at 7 P.M.  Commissioners Christiansen, Newman, 
Westman, Wilk, and Chair Routh were present remotely.   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Apr 1, 2021 7:00 P.M. 
 
 MOTION: Approve the minutes. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Peter Wilk 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Peter Wilk 

ABSTAIN: Susan Westman 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 2110 41st Avenue   #21-0149   APN: 034-221-16 
Application for a Monument Sign, Design Permit, and Conditional Use Permit amending 
application #20-0460 for the Master Car Wash, a car washing facility, located at 2110 41st 
Avenue in the C-R (Regional Commercial) Zoning District.   
This project is outside of the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption   
Property Owner: David Karsan   
Representative: Bill Kempf, Architect, Filed: 04.15.2021   
 

MOTION:  Approve the application for a sign, design permit, and conditional use permit 
with the condition that property owner shall work with City Staff and the neighboring 
property owners at 2109 and 2113 Derby Avenue to identify appropriate tree species for 
tree screen in rear landscape area. 

 
 

FINAL MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Thursday, May 6, 2021 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

C
 0

5.
06

.2
1 

A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s 
  (

P
C

 a
ct

io
n

 m
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – May 6, 2021 2 
 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Newman 

SECONDER: Susan Westman 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, 

Peter Wilk   

 
B. 527 Capitola Avenue   #21-0126   APN: 035-093-02 

Appeal of an administrative approval of a tree removal application located within 
the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Shelly Lawrie 
Appellant: Robert Edgren, Filed: 03.24.2021 

MOTION: Deny the appeal and uphold the administrative approval.  

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 2] 

MOVER: Ed Newman 

SECONDER: Peter Wilk 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Peter Wilk,  

NAYS: Mick Routh, Susan Westman 

5. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

6. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:43 P.M. to the next regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on June 3, 2021. 
 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Edna Basa, Clerk to the Commission 
 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

C
 0

5.
06

.2
1 

A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s 
  (

P
C

 a
ct

io
n

 m
in

u
te

s)



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 7/30/2021 2:07 PM  

FINAL MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Thursday, July 15, 2021 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Routh called the meeting to order at 7 P.M.  Commissioners Christiansen, Newman, 
Westman, Wilk and Chair Routh were present remotely.   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

Community Development Director Herlihy stated item 4A is continued to the September 2, 2021 
hearing. 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - May 6, 2021 7:00 PM 
 

MOTION:  Approve the minutes. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Susan Westman 

SECONDER: Peter Wilk 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, 

Peter Wilk 

B. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Jun 3, 2021 7:00 PM 
 

MOTION:  Approve the minutes. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Newman 

SECONDER: Peter Wilk 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, 

Peter Wilk 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Tree Removal in Cherry Avenue Right-of-Way #21-0167  
Tree Removal Application for the removal of one date palm tree located within 
the MU-V (Mixed-Use Village) zoning district. The date palm is located adjacent 
to 102 Cherry Avenue at the East end of Cherry Avenue between Cherry Avenue 
and Monterey Avenue. 
Note: Request to Continue to September 2, 2021. 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

C
 0

7.
15

.2
1 

A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
P

C
 a

ct
io

n
 m

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 15, 2021 2 
 

This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: City of Capitola  
Representative: Pacific Gas & Electric, Filed: 06.22.21 
 
MOTION: Continue the item to September 2, 2021. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Susan Westman 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, Peter Wilk 

ABSTAIN: Ed Newman 

 
B. 4855 Topaz Street   #19-0288   APN: 034-065-21 

Design Permit for a new attached garage on an existing nonconforming single-family 
residence and a new attached Accessory Dwelling Unit (approved ministerially) located 
within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.    
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit which is not 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption   
Property Owner: Randall and Allison Epperson   
Representative: Scott Hicks, Filed: 06.14.2019  

Associate Planner Matt Orbach presented the staff report. 
 
MOTION: Approve the design permit. 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Susan Westman 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, Peter Wilk 

ABSTAIN: Ed Newman 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 4875 Opal Street   #21-0076   APN: 034-064-12 
Design Permit for the construction of a new single-family residence on a vacant 
lot located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is not appealable to the California Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: DRVO Builders 
Representative: Dennis Norton, Filed: 03.30.21 

Assistant Planner Sean Sesanto presented the staff report. 
 
MOTION:  Approve the design permit. 
 

 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

C
 0

7.
15

.2
1 

A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
P

C
 a

ct
io

n
 m

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – July 15, 2021 3 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Peter Wilk 

SECONDER: Susan Westman 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, 

Peter Wilk 

B. SB2 Pre-Approved ADU Program Overview   
Introduction to SB2 Pre-Approved Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Program.  
Representative: Matt Orbach, Associate Planner, City of Capitola  
Applicant: City of Capitola 

Associate Planner Orbach presented the staff report. 

This is a presentation only.  No action is required. 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:12 P.M. to the next regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission on August 19, 2021. 

 
 
 

Approved by the Planning Commission 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Edna Basa, Clerk to the Commission 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

C
 0

7.
15

.2
1 

A
ct

io
n

 M
in

u
te

s 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
P

C
 a

ct
io

n
 m

in
u

te
s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated July 16, July 23, July 30, August 6, and 

August 13  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 
 

Account: City Main 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Payment 

Count 
Amount 

7/16/2021 98326 98420 97 $       198,468.41 

7/23/2021 98421 98470 55 $       739,495.75 

7/30/2021 98471 98539 71 $    2,275,141.02 

8/6/2021 98540 98576 43 $       342,304.04 

8/13/2021 98577 98632 59 $         66,880.47 

The main account check register dated July 2, 2021, ended with check #98325. 
 

Account: Library 

Date 
Starting 

Check/EFT # 

Ending 

Check/EFT # 

Payment 

Count 
Amount 

7/16/2021 280 280 1 $         30,418.27 

7/23/2021 281 281 1 $           7,995.39 

8/13/2021 282 282 1 $           4,150.00 

The library account check register dated July 2, 2021, ended with check #279. 

 

Account: Payroll 

Date 
Starting 

Check/EFT # 

Ending 

Check/EFT # 

Payment 

Count 
Amount 

7/16/2021 17424 17531 108 $       235,480.16 

7/30/2021 17532 17636 109 $       201,262.16 

8/6/2021 5727 5745 19 $         18,304.05 

8/13/2021 17637 17720 85 $       171,834.72 

The payroll account check register dated July 2, 2021, ended with EFT #17423.  
 
Following is a list of payments issued for more than $10,000 and descriptions of the expenditures: 
 

Check/ Issued to Dept Description Amount 

8.C

Packet Pg. 61



Approval of City Check Registers  
August 26, 2021 
 

EFT 

98356 Donald Alley PW Soquel lagoon monitoring $   13,964.67 

98392 
Santa Cruz County 

Auditor-Controller 
PD June citation processing $   17,279.50 

1162 
CalPERS Member 

Services 
FN 

PERS contributions PPE 

6/26/21 
$   54,114.31 

280 Otto Construction Inc. PW Library construction $   30,418.27 

98443 MBASIA CM 
Insurance, Workers’ 

Compensation 
$ 386,549.78 

98449 PG&E PW Gas & electricity $   15,551.26 

98456 
Santa Cruz County Animal 

Shelter 
PD Quarterly animal services $   29,542.00 

98460 
Soquel Creek Water 

District 
PW Water service $   11,751.27 

98466 US Bank FN Pacific Cove facility lease $   78,089.59 

98468 Watchguard Video PD 

Video system replacement, 

server, hard drives, licenses, 

cloud storage 

$   32,606.19 

1167 
CalPERS Member 

Services 
FN 

PERS contributions PPE 

7/10/21 
$   56,356.30 

1168 
Employment Development 

Department 
FN States taxes PPE 7/10/21 $   14,319.34 

1169 Internal Revenue Service FN 
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

7/10/21 
$   44,710.09 

1171 Voya Financial FN 
Employee 457 contributions 

PPE 7/10/21 
$   19,046.94 

98513 Santa Cruz County Sheriff PD SART contribution $   12,040.00 

98516 Santa Cruz Regional 911 PD 
Operating & SCRMS 

contribution 
$ 175,311.15 

98526 Visit Santa Cruz County FN 
Quarterly tourism marketing 

district 
$   49,307.95 

1173 CalPERS Fiscal Services FN 
FY 21-22 PERS UAL 

prepayment 
$   1,969,574 

98544 
Capitola-Soquel Chamber 

of Commerce 
FN Quarterly TOT allocation $   13,081.90 

98562 Moffatt and Nichol PW Wharf permitting & design $   11,631.25 

98566 
Santa Cruz County 

Auditor-Controller 
PD July citation processing $   17,002.50 

98567 Santa Cruz County Bank FN Pacific Cove lease financing $   82,532.87 

1174 CalPERS Health CM August health insurance $   58,940.79 

1176 Voya Financial FN 
Employee 457 contributions 

PPE 7/24/21 
$   10,612.53 

1177 
CalPERS Member 

Services 
FN 

PERS contributions PPE 

7/24/21 
$   55,209.50 

1178 
Employment Development 

Department 
FN State taxes PPE 7/24/21 $   10,275.49 

1179 Internal Revenue Service FN Federal taxes & Medicare PPE $   34,565.32 

8.C

Packet Pg. 62



Approval of City Check Registers  
August 26, 2021 
 

7/24/21 

98613 Santa Cruz County Clerk CM November 2020 election costs $   15,908.41 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 7-16-21 Check Register 
2. 7-23-21 Check Register 
3. 7-30-21 Check Register 
4. 8-6-21 Check Register 
5. 8-13-21 Check Register 

 
Report Prepared By:   Mark Sullivan 
 Senior Accountant 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 63



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-1
6-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.2

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-2
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.3

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-3
0-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.4

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-6
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.4

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-6
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.4

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-6
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.4

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-6
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.4

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-6
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.4

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-6
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



8.C.5

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

-1
3-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Donation to Service Corps of Retired Executives: Central Coast  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to donate $500 to the Service Core of 
Retired Executives: Central Coast in recognition of their assistance on Capitola’s Business 
Recovery Task Force. 
 
DISCUSSION: On May 18, 2020, the City of Capitola announced the Capitola Business 

Recovery Program and the appointment of Richard Hill as the business liaison. The formation of 

the Mayor’s select Business Recovery Task Force was also announced, with Richard Hill 

leading the meetings. The first meeting was held on May 28. The task force met regularly after 

each City Council meeting in 2020, and then once a month from January through June 2021. 

The Committee members include Carry Arnone (Chamber of Commerce), Brittany Barrett (Total 

Fitness), Kent Berman (Santa Cruz Hotel Group), Andy Dally (Police Captain), Jill Ealy 

(Zelda’s/Sotola), Anthony Guajardo (Business Improvement Area President), Katie Herlihy 

(Community Development Director), Brian Kirk (Capitola Mall), and Benjamin Ow (Ow 

properties). 

Rich Hill’s experience in management and problem solving were of great value to the Business 

Recovery Task Force. Rich Hill has more than 35 years of public sector experience, including 

nine years as Capitola’s City Manager. Since retiring from the City of Capitola in July 2010, he 

has volunteered for SCORE Central Coast, a non-profit providing mentorship to Santa Cruz and 

Monterey County business owners. In recognition for Rich Hill and SCORE’s contributions to the 

City and to business recovery during the past year in a half, a donation of $500 is proposed to 

Central Coast SCORE.  

FISCAL IMPACT: The funding for the $500 will be allocated from the City Manager 

Unanticipated Events account. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Katie Herlihy 
 Community Development Director 
 

8.D

Packet Pg. 106



SCORE Central Coast BRTF Donation  
August 26, 2021 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 107



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  Capitola Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase Used Police Motorcycle and Surplus Police Motorcycle  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Police Department to purchase a 2016 BMW R1200-
RTP motorcycle from Max BMW Motorcycle for $16,000 and authorize the sale/auction of a 
2014 Zero motorcycle.   
 
BACKGROUND: City Council authorization is required for the sale and/or purchase of city 
vehicles.  City staff recommends:  
 

1) Award purchase contract to Max BMW Motorcycles for $16,000, for the purchase 
of a 2016 BMW R1200 RT-P police motorcycle (VIN WB10A1305GZ194400) with 
21,276 miles and;  
2) Authorize the sale/auction of a 2014 Zero police motorcycle (VIN 
538SD4Z25DCB03308) with 4,343 miles.    
 

DISCUSSION: To assure proper response times, efficiently deploy law enforcement resources, 
ensure community and officer safety, and maintain a professional appearance, the Police 
Department coordinates with the Public Works Department to replace police vehicles as 
needed. Staff recommends purchasing a used 2016 BMW R1200 RT-P and selling or 
auctioning the 2014 Zero motorcycle. This intent of this purchase is to replace the motorcycle 
involved in the collision on September 5, 2020, which was damaged beyond repair.    
 
Staff has negotiated the purchase price of a used police motorcycle from Max BMW Motorcycle 
in New Hampshire to replace the police motorcycle damaged in 2020 due to a “no-fault” 
accident. The total cost of the BMW bike, including shipping, is $16,000. The offered unit is a 
2016 BMW R1200 RT-P (police-equipped motorcycle). This motorcycle is in excellent condition 
and can easily be transitioned for immediate use by the police department. BMW has been 
making police motorcycles for many years. BMW motorcycles are of high quality and are used 
by most law enforcement agencies to effectively deploy police personnel. By purchasing this 
motorcycle, our police motorcycle fleet will maintain its professional image and allow our motor 
officers a consistent riding platform for training and patrol operations. A portion of the requested 
funding for this purchase will come from the State of California Supplemental Law Enforcement 
Services Fund (SLESF) in addition to the insurance payout that was transferred to the 
Equipment Internal Services Fund (ISF). 
 
The Zero police motorcycle has been deployed for traffic enforcement and patrol purposes since 
2014. Since deployment, this motorcycle has had significant issues with the battery source; 

8.E

Packet Pg. 108



PD Motorcycle  
August 26, 2021 
 
making the motorcycle cost-ineffective and unreliable for daily patrol use. Due to the limited use 
and fiscal impact related to mechanical upkeep and service costs, the Police Department is no 
longer utilizing this motorcycle for our fleet and is requesting the sale/auction of this equipment.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The funding source for the purchase of the used motorcycle will come from 
two sources, SLESF ($11,000) and the Equipment ISF ($5,000) as detailed on the attached 
budget amendment. The total purchase price is $16,000. It is estimated the sale/auction of the 
Zero motorcycle will result in a gain of approximately $500. The proceeds from this sale will be 
deposited in the Equipment ISF.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. MAX BMW BID 
2. PD Motorcycle Budget Amendment 

 
Report Prepared By:   Andrew Dally 
 Police Captain 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.E

Packet Pg. 109



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

A
X

 B
M

W
 B

ID
  (

P
D

 M
o

to
rc

yc
le

)



8.E.1

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

A
X

 B
M

W
 B

ID
  (

P
D

 M
o

to
rc

yc
le

)



8.E.2

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

D
 M

o
to

rc
yc

le
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

P
D

 M
o

to
rc

yc
le

)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Update Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt the proposed resolution amending the hourly and seasonal 
Pay Schedule. 
 
BACKGROUND: The City’s hourly and seasonal employees are primarily in the Recreation 
Division, but this classification also includes part-time positions such as interns, reserve officers, 
and annuitant officers who are employed by other departments. Hourly and seasonal employees 
work either part-time or on a seasonal basis and are not considered regular employees. Hourly 
and seasonal positions are not represented by any labor union and are not subject to any 
existing memorandum of understanding. For this reason, any wage increases are put in place 
by separate City Council action. 
 
DISCUSSION: The hourly and seasonal employees pay schedule was last adjusted in 
December 2020 to comply with minimum wage requirements. The Capitola Police Department 
is hoping to hire an hourly Police Records Technician until they can fill the Administrative 
Records Analyst position. To do this, the position must be added to the hourly and seasonal 
salary schedule. The pay rate for the hourly Police Records Technician will be equivalent to the 
permanent Police Records Technician. This position should not work more than 960 hours in a 
fiscal year. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The anticipated financial impact in Fiscal Year 2021/2022 is $15,000 which is 
incorporated in the budget. 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 113



Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule  
August 26, 2021 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

AMENDING THE HOURLY/SEASONAL EMPLOYEE PAY SCHEDULES EFFECTIVE 
AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council sets the compensation rates for hourly and seasonal 

employment positions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council last amended the Seasonal/Hourly Pay Schedule (Pay 
Schedule, attached as Exhibit “A”) by Resolution No. 4205 on December 10, 2020.  That 
amended Pay Schedule included changes to comply with California minimum wage 
requirements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Hourly/Seasonal Pay Schedule adopted on December 10, 2020, in 
Resolution No. 4205 must be amended to add the following classification, Hourly Police 
Records Technician. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Capitola approves as follows: 

 
      The Hourly/Seasonal Pay Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” is amended as 

shown in the Exhibit. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution becomes effective on January 1, 
2021. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 26th day of December 2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

___________________________ 
Yvette Brooks, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.F

Packet Pg. 114



Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule  
August 26, 2021 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 

Updated August 26, 2021 (Minimum wage $14.00/hour) 

POSITION 0 1 2 3

Intern 15.71$                                 16.49$                17.32$                   18.18$                                  

Junior Lifeguard Instructor 15.67$                                 16.45$                17.28$                   18.14$                                  

Junior Lifeguard Assistant Coordinator 18.59$                                 19.52$                20.50$                   21.53$                                  

Junior Lifeguard Coordinator 22.06$                                 23.17$                24.33$                   25.54$                                  

Recreation Leader I 15.02$                                 15.77$                16.56$                   17.39$                                  

Recreation Leader II 18.26$                                 19.17$                20.13$                   21.14$                                  

Recreation Program Assistant Coordinator 19.17$                                 20.13$                21.14$                   22.20$                                  

Recreation Program Coordinator 22.20$                                 23.31$                24.48$                   25.70$                                  

Recreation Facility Assistant 14.16$                                 14.87$                15.61$                   16.39$                                  

POSITION

Retired Annuitant Officer Salary will be equivalent to the position for which the individual is working in as per the CALPERS regulations.

However, retired Capitola Police Officers who apply and are accepted as Annuitant Officers 

will be paid an hourly wage consistent with Step F of the Police  Officer salary range.

Reserve Officer Level I Automatically adjusts to 20% below the Police Officer Pay Scale

Reserve Officer Level II Automatically adjusts to 20% below the Level I Reserve Officer Pay Scale

Seasonal Recreation Assistant Salary will be equivalent to the position of Recreation Assistant

Part-Time Parking Enforcement Officer Salary will be equivalent to the position of Parking Enforcement Officer

Art and Cultural Assistant Salary will be equivalent to the position of Administrative Assistant

Police Records Technician Salary will be equivalent to the position of Police Records Technician  

8.F

Packet Pg. 115



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Group Agreements  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
1.  Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor agreements to existing Memoranda of 

Understanding (MOU) with negotiated changes for the following groups: 
a. Capitola Police Officers Association (CPOA). 
b. Capitola Police Captains Association 

2.   Adopt a Resolution approving the new salary schedule. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Current Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) for the Capitola Police 
Officers Association (CPOA) and the Capitola Police Captains Associations (CPCA) expired at 
the end of June 2021. As required by state law, the City continued good faith negotiations with 
the bargaining groups on working conditions, salary, and benefit changes.   
 

DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola and all employee bargaining groups began negotiation 
meetings in March 2021. The City Council gave the City’s negotiator fiscal authority based on 
projected upcoming City budgets.  
 
The City and the groups have continued to meet since March and have now come to agreement 
on MOUs through 6/30/2024.  The agreements will go into effect on 8/22/2021. 
 
In addition to overall financial authority, the City Council gave the City negotiator a separate 
financial amount to address the results of a market salary study of comparable agencies, 
performed prior to the beginning of negotiations.  Positions which were determined to be farther 
below the market median received greater negotiated market salary adjustments than those 
closer to the median. 
 
Each bargaining group negotiated for the items they prioritized, in virtual meetings via Zoom.  
Final MOUs will be distributed as additional material. 
 
The City and the groups listed below have come to negotiated agreements on salary and benefit 
changes. 
 

CPOA (Officers and Sergeants) August 2021 July 2022 July 2023 

COLA 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 

Health Increase 0 $50 $50 

8.G

Packet Pg. 116



Employee Group Agreements  
August 26, 2021 
 

Market Survey Adjustment 1.25%   

PEPRA 457 Contribution $25 per Pay Period   

One Time Bonus $1250   

 

CPOA (Records Manager) August 2021 July 2022 July 2023 

COLA 2.0% 2.25% 2.25% 

Health Increase 0 $50 $50 

One Time Bonus $1250   

 

CPOA (Community Service 
Officers) 

August 2021 July 2022 July 2023 

COLA 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 

Health Increase 0 $50 $50 

One Time Bonus $1250   

 

Capitola Police Captains August 2021 July 2022 July 2023 

COLA 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 

Market Survey Adjustment 0.5%   

One Time Bonus $1250   

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The anticipated fiscal impact is approximately $140,000 and has been 

incorporated into the City FY 2021/22 Budget. 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 117



Employee Group Agreements  
August 26, 2021 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE UPDATED FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 
PAY RATES AND RANGES (SALARY SCHEDULE) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council establishes the legal current salary range from the salary 
schedule for each class of position; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the California Public Employee’s Retirement Law, at Section 570.5 of the 
California Code of Regulations Title 2, requires the City to publish pay rates and ranges on the 
City’s internet site and the City Council to approve the pay rates and range in its entirety each 
time a modification is made; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Association of Capitola Employees bargaining group and Mid-
Management Employees Association have negotiated in good faith Memoranda of 
Understanding (MOUs) within the financial authority authorized by the City Council which 
includes a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) beginning the first full pay period after ratification; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the attached salary schedule for each group does not go into effect until the 
MOUs are ratified by both the City Council and the employee groups and will be effective 
August 22, 2021; and 

 
 WHEREAS, a salary resolution is adopted annually by the City Council upon review and 
recommendation of the City Manager. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Capitola does 
hereby:  

 
Authorize and approve City of Capitola pay rates and ranges (Updated Salary Schedule, 
Exhibit A) for permanent employees from August 22, 2021, through June 30, 2022. 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola on the 26th day of August 2021, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.G

Packet Pg. 118



Employee Group Agreements  
August 26, 2021 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Updated Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Salary Schedule 
 
 

POA SALARY SCHEDULE

AUGUST 22, 2021- JUNE 30, 2021

3.0% COLA + 1.25% MSSA Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

Police Officer Trainee $6,605.73 $38.11

Police Officer $6,935.95 $7,283.47 $7,642.27 $8,027.07 $8,428.42 $8,852.13 $40.02 $42.02 $44.09 $46.31 $48.63 $51.07

Sergeant $8,494.15 $8,921.47 $9,367.54 $9,833.20 $10,327.20 $10,842.00 $49.00 $51.47 $54.04 $56.73 $59.58 $62.55

1.0% COLA

Community Service Officer $5,317.87 $5,584.80 $5,862.13 $6,155.07 $6,465.33 $6,791.20 $30.68 $32.22 $33.82 $35.51 $37.30 $39.18

2.0% COLA

Records Manager $6,186.27 $6,498.27 $6,820.67 $7,160.40 $7,524.40 $7,897.07 $35.69 $37.49 $39.35 $41.31 $43.41 $45.56

HourlyMonthly

 
 

POLICE CAPTAIN SALARY SCHEDULE

AUGUST 22, 2021 - JUNE 30, 2022

3% COLA + .5% MSSA
Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

Police Captain $9,884.33 $10,378.90 $10,897.55 $11,443.87 $12,016.67 $12,618.34 $57.02 $59.88 $62.87 $66.02 $69.33 $72.80

Monthly Hourly

 
 

ACE SALARY SCHEDULE

JUNE 27, 2021 - JUNE 30,2022

2.75 % COLA Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E

ACCOUNT TECHNICIAN 4,830.94$ 5,072.58$ 5,325.03$ 5,590.11$ 5,873.23$ 27.87$ 29.26$ 30.72$ 32.25$ 33.88$ 

ACCOUNTANT I 5,837.16$ 6,131.09$ 6,435.84$ 6,756.82$ 7,094.03$ 33.68$ 35.37$ 37.13$ 38.98$ 40.93$ 

ACCOUNTANT II 6,437.65$ 6,758.63$ 7,097.64$ 7,451.08$ 7,822.55$ 37.14$ 38.99$ 40.95$ 42.99$ 45.13$ 

ACCOUNTS CLERK 4,381.93$ 4,603.73$ 4,830.94$ 5,074.38$ 5,326.84$ 25.28$ 26.56$ 27.87$ 29.28$ 30.73$ 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT I 4,423.40$ 4,643.40$ 4,876.02$ 5,121.27$ 5,379.13$ 25.52$ 26.79$ 28.13$ 29.55$ 31.03$ 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II 4,643.40$ 4,876.02$ 5,121.27$ 5,379.13$ 5,648.09$ 26.79$ 28.13$ 29.55$ 31.03$ 32.59$ 

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK I 3,398.15$ 3,567.34$ 3,743.66$ 3,930.67$ 4,128.36$ 19.60$ 20.58$ 21.60$ 22.68$ 23.82$ 

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK II 3,930.67$ 4,128.36$ 4,331.39$ 4,552.24$ 4,780.20$ 22.68$ 23.82$ 24.99$ 26.26$ 27.58$ 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECORDS ANALYST 5,156.00$ 5,412.46$ 5,684.95$ 5,968.13$ 6,267.34$ 29.75$ 31.23$ 32.80$ 34.43$ 36.16$ 

ASSISTANT PLANNER 5,637.00$ 5,916.50$ 6,214.04$ 6,524.20$ 6,848.79$ 32.52$ 34.13$ 35.85$ 37.64$ 39.51$ 

BUILDING INSPECTOR I 5,047.05$ 5,301.43$ 5,565.03$ 5,843.37$ 6,138.31$ 29.12$ 30.59$ 32.11$ 33.71$ 35.41$ 

BUILDING INSPECTOR II 5,889.46$ 6,182.55$ 6,492.23$ 6,816.65$ 7,157.67$ 33.98$ 35.67$ 37.46$ 39.33$ 41.29$ 

DATA ENTRY CLERK 3,408.83$ 3,578.03$ 3,756.13$ 3,948.48$ 4,144.39$ 19.67$ 20.64$ 21.67$ 22.78$ 23.91$ 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 4,748.43$ 4,986.22$ 5,235.07$ 5,496.82$ 5,771.48$ 27.39$ 28.77$ 30.20$ 31.71$ 33.30$ 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TECHNICIAN 4,748.43$ 4,986.22$ 5,235.07$ 5,496.82$ 5,771.48$ 27.39$ 28.77$ 30.20$ 31.71$ 33.30$ 

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR 4,568.27$ 4,798.01$ 5,036.67$ 5,291.35$ 5,554.94$ 26.36$ 27.68$ 29.06$ 30.53$ 32.05$ 

MAINTENANCE WORKER I 3,329.76$ 3,499.53$ 3,672.96$ 3,855.51$ 4,050.84$ 19.21$ 20.19$ 21.19$ 22.24$ 23.37$ 

MAINTENANCE WORKER II 4,461.58$ 4,682.47$ 4,917.96$ 5,166.24$ 5,425.46$ 25.74$ 27.01$ 28.37$ 29.81$ 31.30$ 

MAINTENANCE WORKER III 4,917.96$ 5,166.24$ 5,425.46$ 5,696.73$ 5,981.57$ 28.37$ 29.81$ 31.30$ 32.87$ 34.51$ 

MECHANIC 4,774.86$ 5,015.30$ 5,266.42$ 5,526.44$ 5,806.06$ 27.55$ 28.93$ 30.38$ 31.88$ 33.50$ 

MUSEUM CURATOR 4,327.83$ 4,546.89$ 4,774.86$ 5,013.52$ 5,262.86$ 24.97$ 26.23$ 27.55$ 28.92$ 30.36$ 

PARKING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER 4,081.14$ 4,280.22$ 4,495.89$ 4,722.62$ 4,958.57$ 23.55$ 24.69$ 25.94$ 27.25$ 28.61$ 

RECEPTIONIST 3,831.78$ 4,023.46$ 4,226.09$ 4,436.03$ 4,660.57$ 22.11$ 23.21$ 24.38$ 25.59$ 26.89$ 

RECORDS MANAGEMENT CLERK 4,269.06$ 4,484.56$ 4,710.75$ 4,945.84$ 5,193.40$ 24.63$ 25.87$ 27.18$ 28.53$ 29.96$ 

 POLICE RECORDS TECHNICIAN 4,262.91$ 4,473.89$ 4,699.30$ 4,935.53$ 5,180.77$ 24.59$ 25.81$ 27.11$ 28.47$ 29.89$ 

RECREATION ASSISTANT 3,310.63$ 3,474.69$ 3,653.49$ 3,832.29$ 4,022.16$ 19.10$ 20.05$ 21.08$ 22.11$ 23.20$ 

RECREATION COORDINATOR 4,280.22$ 4,494.05$ 4,720.78$ 4,958.57$ 5,201.89$ 24.69$ 25.93$ 27.24$ 28.61$ 30.01$ 

RECREATION FACILITY CUSTODIAN 3,198.19$ 3,356.71$ 3,526.30$ 3,703.44$ 3,887.59$ 18.45$ 19.37$ 20.34$ 21.37$ 22.43$ 

RECREATION RECEPTIONIST 3,588.97$ 3,766.71$ 3,953.95$ 4,151.19$ 4,363.17$ 20.71$ 21.73$ 22.81$ 23.95$ 25.17$ 

Monthly Hourly

 
 
 

8.G

Packet Pg. 119



Employee Group Agreements  
August 26, 2021 
 

MID-MANAGEMENT SALARY SCHEDULE

6/27/2021 - 6/30/2022 Monthly Hourly

2.5% COLA Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E

ASSOCIATE PLANNER 6,474.89$ 6,798.99$ 7,138.59$ 7,496.05$    7,871.39$    37.36$ 39.22$ 41.18$ 43.25$ 45.41$ 

BUILDING OFFICIAL (CAPITOLA) 8,904.00$ 9,350.05$ 9,817.49$ 10,307.72$ 10,823.61$ 51.37$ 53.94$ 56.64$ 59.47$ 62.44$ 

BUILDING OFFICIAL (SCOTTS VALLEY) 8,904.00$ 9,350.05$ 9,817.49$ 10,307.72$ 10,823.61$ 51.37$ 53.94$ 56.64$ 59.47$ 62.44$ 

CIVIL ENGINEER/PROJECT MANAGER 7,444.82$ 7,817.77$ 8,208.60$ 8,618.49$    9,049.84$    42.95$ 45.10$ 47.36$ 49.72$ 52.21$ 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS MANAGER 6,863.39$ 7,206.93$ 7,566.90$ 7,945.82$    8,343.68$    39.60$ 41.58$ 43.66$ 45.84$ 48.14$ 

MAINTENANCE SUPERINTENDENT 6,369.99$ 6,691.13$ 7,024.02$ 7,374.54$    7,742.68$    36.75$ 38.60$ 40.52$ 42.54$ 44.68$ 

FIELD SUPERVISOR 6,053.98$ 6,355.58$ 6,675.15$ 7,008.71$    7,356.25$    34.93$ 36.67$ 38.52$ 40.43$ 42.43$ 

SENIOR PLANNER 7,444.82$ 7,817.77$ 8,208.60$ 8,618.49$    9,049.84$    42.95$ 45.10$ 47.36$ 49.72$ 52.21$ 

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT 7,444.82$ 7,817.77$ 8,208.60$ 8,618.49$    9,049.84$    42.95$ 45.10$ 47.36$ 49.72$ 52.21$ 

SENIOR MECHANIC 5,624.54$ 5,906.17$ 6,201.78$ 6,511.37$    6,836.94$    32.45$ 34.08$ 35.78$ 37.55$ 39.44$  
 

CONFIDENTIAL SALARY SCHEDULE

JUNE 27, 2021 -  JUNE 30, 2022

 3.0% COLA + 3.0% MSSA

A B C D E A B C D E

ASSIST TO CITY MGR 7,925.09$ 8,320.98$ 8,736.59$ 9,174.41$ 9,633.19$ 45.72$ 48.01$ 50.40$ 52.93$ 55.58$ 

CITY CLERK 7,318.32$ 7,684.60$ 8,068.15$ 8,471.44$ 8,895.69$ 42.22$ 44.33$ 46.55$ 48.87$ 51.32$ 

INFORMATION SYSTEMS SPECIALIST 5,653.38$ 5,935.80$ 6,231.79$ 6,543.81$ 6,870.63$ 32.62$ 34.25$ 35.95$ 37.75$ 39.64$ 

HUMAN RESOURCES ANALYST 5,728.15$ 6,013.18$ 6,314.76$ 6,631.06$ 6,963.89$ 33.05$ 34.69$ 36.43$ 38.26$ 40.18$ 

RECREATION DIVISION MANAGER 7,318.32$ 7,684.60$ 8,068.15$ 8,471.44$ 8,895.69$ 42.22$ 44.33$ 46.55$ 48.87$ 51.32$ 

Monthly Hourly

 
 
 

MANAGEMENT SALARY SCHEDULE

JUNE 27, 2021 - JUNE 30, 2022

2.6% COLA Min Max Min Max Min Max

City Manager 212,084.25$    212,084.25$ 17,673.69$        17,673.69$ 101.96$           101.96$ 

Chief of Police 148,752.00$    189,696.00$ 12,396.00$        15,808.00$ 71.52$              91.20$    

Department Heads 134,124.00$    163,560.00$ 11,177.00$        13,630.00$ 64.48$              78.63$    

Annual  Range Monthly Range Hourly  Range

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 120



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Capitola Recreation Afterschool Program Update  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report on the Capitola Recreation Afterschool program at 
New Brighton Middle School.  
 
BACKGROUND: Capitola Recreation and Soquel Union Elementary School District (SUESD) 

began a partnership for an afterschool recreation program at New Brighton Middle School 

(NBMS) for the 2019/2020 school year. This “Afterschool Rec Club” for middle school students 

was both a successful partnership and valued community service that each party was interested 

in continuing into the 2020/2021 school year.  

In March of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic closed schools and the afterschool recreation 

program ceased operation for the remainder of the school year. In September of 2020, the City 

began the Out-of-School Time (OST) distant learning program, to support working families of 

elementary and middle school students with distance learning and provide recreation 

enrichment activities. In March of 2021, SUESD resumed in-person learning for about four 

hours of instruction per day. The OST program adapted to provide afterschool programing at the 

elementary schools in the district until the end of the school year.  

DISCUSSION: The SUESD plans to return to normal instruction for the 2021/22 school year, 

following the availability of vaccines and the improvement in the COVID-19 pandemic. The 

school year began on August 11, 2021, and the need for afterschool program options has 

resumed.  

The City’s Recreation Division is again providing “Afterschool Rec Club” hosted at New Brighton 

Middle School. In the first year of this program, the program was only offered to middle school 

students at NBMS. Over the past school year, Capitola Recreation has been providing 

afterschool programming to elementary age students and plans to continue that practice.  

Students in first to fifth grade at Soquel Elementary School and Main Street Elementary school 

will be able to enroll in the afterschool program located at NBMS. This expansion was 

anticipated in the FY 2021/22 Budget, with the authorization of funding to purchase a van to 

transport elementary school students. Unfortunately, due to supply issues, the City has been 

unable to purchase a 10-passenger van to date. In the meantime, City staff has made use of the 

existing City 1987 Ford Aerostar van which seats five students. The van is being used on an 

established driving route to pick up students at the two elementary schools and drive them to 

NBMS for the afterschool program.  

FISCAL IMPACT: No significant fiscal impact. If a budget amendment becomes necessary it will 

8.H

Packet Pg. 121



Capitola Recreation Afterschool  
August 26, 2021 
 
be brought to Council during the mid-year budget review.  

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Nikki Bryant Bryant LeBlond 
 Recreation Supervisor 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.H

Packet Pg. 122



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Receive Update on Pandemic Response  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Make the determination that all hazards related to the worldwide spread of the 
coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 adopted by the City Council 
on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to continue action; and 

2. Extend the COVID-19 temporary use permits allowing for outdoor dining to January 3, 
2022 and implement rules for permit holders, as outlined in the staff report.  

 
BACKGROUND: In December 2019, an outbreak of a respiratory illness linked to the novel 

coronavirus (COVID-19) was first identified. In March 2020, the State of California, the County 

of Santa Cruz, and the City of Capitola each declared a state of emergency due to the virus. 

Also in March, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic.  

Since March 2020, State and local health officers have issued health orders to stop the spread 

of COVID-19; in Santa Cruz County this included March, April, and May 2020 Shelter-In-Place 

orders that were more restrictive than statewide guidance. Since then, the County Health Officer 

has incorporated all Orders of the State Public Health Officer, which set baseline statewide 

restrictions on travel business activities.  

Since the beginning of the pandemic more than 36 million COVID-19 cased have been reported 

and more than 621,228 people have died from the virus in the United States alone.  

In California, 64,383 deaths have been reported; there were 92 deaths due to COVID-19 

reported on Thursday, August 19. According to data from August 19, the average new case 

count in California per 100k is 27.4 (higher than 25.6 one month ago). 

As of mid-August 2021, more than four million people worldwide have died of COVID-19 and 

more than 200 million people have been infected with the virus.  

Limited Restrictions Required Until October 1, 2021  

California moved Beyond the Blueprint on June 15. The tier system has been eliminated, and 

normal operations can resume in nearly all business sectors. There are no longer capacity 

limitations or physical distancing requirements, and for fully vaccinated people mask 

requirements have been significantly relaxed. The restrictions outlined in the table below will 

remain in effect until September 30, 2021:  

Restrictions Applying to Indoor & Outdoor Settings 

9.A

Packet Pg. 123



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 30  
August 26, 2021 
 

Vaccine Verification/Negative Testing Indoor Mega Event: required 

Outdoor Mega Event: recommended 

Capacity Limitations None  

Physical Distancing None  

Masking Fully Vaccinated People: no requirements in 

most settings 

Un-Vaccinated People: required when indoors  

Travelers Subject to CDC recommendations and any 

current CDPH travel advisories  

 

Delta Variant & Surge in COVID-19 

As stated by the World Health Organization (WHO), “all viruses, including SARS-CoV-2, the 

virus that causes COVID-19, change over time. Most changes have little to no impact on the 

virus’ properties. However, some changes may affect the virus’s properties, such as how 

easily it spreads, the associated disease severity, or the performance of vaccines, therapeutic 

medicines, diagnostic tools, or other public health and social measures”. One of several variants 

on SARS-CoV-2 is of particular concern, known as the Delta Variant.  

The WHO designated Delta a variant of interest on April 4, 2021, and a variant of concern on 

May 11, 2021.  As of July 13, the Delta variant is now the dominant strain of the coronavirus in 

the United States. Health organizations maintain that complete vaccination is highly effective 

against the Delta variant, and the variant is proven to be particularly dominant in areas of the 

U.S. with lower vaccination rates.  

On July 1, public health officials in Los Angeles County urged residents to again wear masks 

indoors (regardless of vaccination status), due to a rise in COVID-19 cases involving the Delta 

variant. On July 16, the Los Angeles County Public Health Officer announced that due to 

increased transmission masks will be required indoors regardless of vaccination status 

beginning at midnight on July 17. On July 19, the Counties of Monterey, Napa, San Benito, and 

Santa Cruz together recommended indoor masking in all public places as an extra precaution 

against the increase in COVID-19 cases.  

On August 5, the Santa Cruz County Public Health Office published a press release confirming 

that, as in the rest of the State and Country, our local community has seen a surge in COVID-19 

due to the spread of the Delta variant.  

Vaccine Status  

According to state data recorded on August 19, more than 45 million COVID-19 vaccine doses 

have been administered in the State of California. 64.8% of Californians over the age of 12 are 

fully vaccinated and 10.3% are partially vaccinated. There is an average vaccination rate of 

about 80,310 doses per day. All Californians aged 12 and older are eligible for a vaccination. 

The State has 5,457,814 vaccine doses on hand, the equivalent to 68 days of inventory.  

As of August 19, 345,030 doses of the vaccine have been administered by Santa Cruz County.  

Local Case Numbers and Statistics in Santa Cruz County 

9.A

Packet Pg. 124



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 30  
August 26, 2021 
 
As of August 19, there were 17,663 known COVID-19 cases in Santa Cruz County; of these, 

516 were in the City of Capitola. Rather than the total number of all COVID-19 cases since 

March 2020, it is helpful to compare the currently active known case count to identify trends 

and/or a surge. On June 15, there were 91 active cases. One month later, on August 16, there 

were 780 active known cases, and on August 19, the number of active known cases reported 

was 824.  

On August 9, two additional deaths due to COVID-19 were reported for the first time in months. 

Both were confirmed to have been the Delta variant. This brings our County’s COVID-19 death 

count to 209.  

DISCUSSION: City Hall has been open to the public since June 2020 in one configuration or 
another, dependent upon applicable health guidance and local COVID-19 case levels. Current 
City Hall operations are business as usual, with masking required of all regardless of 
vaccination statue when in public spaces (not in private, individual office spaces). Members of 
the public are helped one-at-a-time at the front counter and masks are required to enter City 
Hall.  
 
City Council and all City Boards and Commissions plan to return to in-person meetings when 
required by the Governor’s Order beginning October 2021. If nothing between now and then 
changes significantly, the first in-person Council meeting will be October 14, 2021.  
 
Temporary Outdoor Dining Extension: 

Due to the recent increase of COVID-19 cases in Santa Cruz County, it is likely that businesses 
will request their temporary outdoor use permits be extended into the winter; at present, at least 
three Village businesses have requested that they be allowed to continue use of their current 
outdoor dining areas beyond September 13. Staff recommends extending the temporary 
program to January 3, 2022.  

Staff further recommends that the following new rules be implemented for those businesses with 
active permits: 

• All trash must be picked up and properly disposed of 

• All flower boxes or planters must contain healthy vegetation  

• All tables, chairs, equipment, and structures must be kept clean and operational  

Non-compliant permittees shall receive a single notice of violation and given seven days to 
rectify any problems, and the Public Works Department would be authorized to disassemble any 
outdoor dining area in non-compliance following notice.  

If major changes occur between the date of agenda publication and the City Council meeting, 

further updates on the regional and local coronavirus response will be provided in a verbal 

report at the meeting.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Extension of the temporary outdoor dining program for an additional four 

months will have an estimated $28,000 impact on parking meter revenue.  This impact will be 

assessed during the February mid-year budget review. 

Fiscal impacts are continually reviewed by Staff as business restrictions and consumer 

behaviors change in our community. In addition, the City Council has set aside $600,000 to help 

ensure the City has available resources should the pandemic result in further unforeseen 

impacts, which remains in the approved FY 2021/22 Budget.  

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 125



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 30  
August 26, 2021 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Chloe Woodmansee 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.A

Packet Pg. 126



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Award a Contract for 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Adaptive Signal Project  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

1. Award a contract to Bear Electric Solutions from Alviso for construction of the 41st 
Avenue Adaptive Traffic Signal System in the amount of $460,526; and 

2. Authorize the City Manager to reallocate up to $100,000 in the Capital Improvement 
Project fund from the Bay Avenue/Capitola Avenue Roundabout project to the 41st 
Avenue Adaptive Traffic Signal project. 

 
BACKGROUND: On August 18, 2021, the City received six bids for the 41st Avenue Adaptive 

Traffic Signal System project. The low bid was $460,526 from Bear Electric Solutions. A bid 

summary is included as Attachment 1. 

The engineer’s estimate for the project was $420,000; making the lowest bid $40,526 over 

budget. The project will install signal coordination software for City-controlled traffic signals at 

the 41st Avenue intersections at Clares Street, the Mall entrance, Capitola Road, and 

Jade/Brommer.    

DISCUSSION: The City has received two grants from the Monterey Bay Air Resources District 

for signal coordination along 41st Avenue. Individual grants have been awarded for City-owned 

traffic signals and for the Caltrans traffic signals at Highway 1. The work on the Caltrans signals 

was not included in the scope of the bid project due to difficulty in receiving the required 

approvals from the State. City staff continues to work with Caltrans and remains hopeful a 

permit may be received to complete the work in the Highway 1 intersections. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The current grant funding from the Air Board totals $760,000, but this total 

also accounts for coordinating the Caltrans signals. To ensure there is sufficient funding to 

complete the Caltrans signals later, staff recommends up to $100,000 be reallocated within the 

Capital Improvement Program budget from the Bay Avenue/Capitola Avenue Roundabout to the 

Signal Coordination project to cover the $40,526 extra, plus contingencies for unanticipated 

work. All grant funds will be used first for contract payments before any City funds are 

expended. The roundabout project has a current budget of $200,000 for plan development and 

public outreach. That project continues to be delayed due to issues with the utility 

undergrounding project with PG&E. The recommended reallocation will leave $100,000 in the 

roundabout project, which is sufficient for work anticipated this fiscal year. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

9.B

Packet Pg. 127



41st Avenue Traffic Signal Adaptive Signal Project  
August 26, 2021 
 

1. 41st Avenue Signal Project Bid Summary 
 

Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 128



oject Title: 41st Avenue Adaptive Traffic Signal System
Opening: August 18, 2021

Item Description Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 Traffic Control 1 LS $17,095 $17,095.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
2 Mobilization 1 LS $10,257 $10,257 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
3 Temporary Water Pollution Control 1 LS $10,257 $10,257 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
4 Utility Potholing 12 EA $1,200 $14,400 $1,325.00 $15,900.00
5 Furnish and Install Adaptive Traffic Signal System 1 LS $200,000 $200,000 $271,791.00 $271,791.00
6 Furnish and Install Category 6 Cable 2,400 LF $5 $12,000 $5.13 $12,312.00
7 Furnish and Install No. 14 AWG Conductors 1,700 LF $3 $5,100 $7.33 $12,461.00
8 Furnish and Install Ethernet Extender Device 4 EA $4,000 $16,000 $5,137.50 $20,550.00
9 Furnish and Install Camera Mounting Hardware 16 EA $500 $8,000 $935.00 $14,960.00

10 Furnish and Install 3” Schedule 80 PVC Conduit 350 LF $150 $52,500 $157.86 $55,251.00
11 Furnish and Install Caltrans No. 5 Pull Box 6 EA $800 $4,800 $1,775.00 $10,650.00
12 Furnish and Install wireless 4G Cellular Modem 2 EA $2,000 $4,000 $1,600.00 $3,200.00
13 Furnish and Install 2-cell Flexible Fabric Innerduct   1,700 LF $14 $23,800 $8.53 $14,501.00
14 Minor Concrete 450 SF $90 $40,500 $41.00 $18,450.00

Bid Total Total $418,709 Total $460,526.00

Bear Elecrical

SCHEDULE A 
ESTIMATE BID 1

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

n
u

e 
S

ig
n

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

id
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 A

d
ap

ti
ve

 S
ig

n
al



Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $18,500.00 $18,500.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00
$20,000.00 $20,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $23,400.00 $23,400.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

$2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,250.00 $2,250.00 $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
$250.00 $3,000.00 $650.00 $7,800.00 $450.00 $5,400.00 $500.00 $6,000.00 $1,200.00 $14,400.00

$277,141.00 $277,141.00 $329,650.00 $329,650.00 $343,800.00 $343,800.00 $340,000.00 $340,000.00 $285,000.00 $285,000.00
$5.45 $13,080.00 $1.75 $4,200.00 $8.50 $20,400.00 $10.00 $24,000.00 $5.00 $12,000.00

$17.40 $29,580.00 $0.85 $1,445.00 $11.50 $19,550.00 $15.00 $25,500.00 $4.00 $6,800.00
$4,018.00 $16,072.00 $3,800.00 $15,200.00 $3,300.00 $13,200.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $3,000.00 $12,000.00
$1,100.00 $17,600.00 $1,125.00 $18,000.00 $850.00 $13,600.00 $1,000.00 $16,000.00 $1,500.00 $24,000.00

$140.00 $49,000.00 $105.00 $36,750.00 $50.00 $17,500.00 $60.00 $21,000.00 $75.00 $26,250.00
$625.00 $3,750.00 $975.00 $5,850.00 $550.00 $3,300.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $1,750.00 $10,500.00

$2,800.00 $5,600.00 $2,700.00 $5,400.00 $2,200.00 $4,400.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00
$7.75 $13,175.00 $8.25 $14,025.00 $12.75 $21,675.00 $15.00 $25,500.00 $13.00 $22,100.00

$40.00 $18,000.00 $26.00 $11,700.00 $23.00 $10,350.00 $20.00 $9,000.00 $41.00 $18,450.00

Total $478,498.00 Total $489,270.00 Total $520,675.00 Total $524,500.00 Total $540,000.00

BID 5 BID 6

Columbia Electric Inc. Mike Brown Electric Co. Precision Grade Inc.
Monterey Peninsula 

Engineering
Alfaro

BID 2 BID 3 BID 4

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

n
u

e 
S

ig
n

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

id
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 A

d
ap

ti
ve

 S
ig

n
al



Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 Total $0.00 Total $0.00

BID 7 BID 8 BID 9

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

1s
t 

A
ve

n
u

e 
S

ig
n

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

id
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

41
st

 A
ve

n
u

e 
T

ra
ff

ic
 S

ig
n

al
 A

d
ap

ti
ve

 S
ig

n
al



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Community Grant Subcommittee  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint two Councilmembers to a subcommittee to review 
applications for the 2021 – 2022 Community Grant Program.  
 
BACKGROUND: As part of the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget, the City Council Allocated 

$125,000 from the general fund for the Capitola Community Grant Program (CGP).  In addition, 

there in an additional $49,000 available from dedicated Youth and Early Childhood program 

funding. The Youth and Early Childhood Program funding is made up of a portion of the voter-

approved Measure F, which raised the City’s transient occupancy tax. 

DISCUSSION: Completed applications for the Fiscal Year 2021-22 CGP were due on Monday, 

August 23, 2021. Staff recommends City Council appoint two Councilmembers to an ad-hoc 

subcommittee to review the applications and recommend funding to the full City Council for 

consideration. Mayor Brooks and Councilmember Petersen were appointed to review the Fiscal 

Year 2020-2021 Community Grant Program applications during the mid-year budget review in 

2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Fiscal Year 2021-22 general fund budget for the CGP is $125,000. In 

addition, there is $49,000 available from the dedicated youth and early childhood program 

funding. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.C

Packet Pg. 132



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2021 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Request for Sponsorship of the Capitola Beach Festival  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to provide $5,000 in sponsorship to the 
Capitola Beach Festival.  
 
BACKGROUND: The Capitola Beach Festival began in 2018 as a successor to the historical 

Begonia Festival. In 2018 and 2019, Capitola and the greater community enjoyed the festival of 

family-friendly events which included a lighted nautical parade on Soquel Creek. The festival 

was cancelled in 2020 due to the pandemic. This year, the event organizers applied and 

received approval for a special event permit to hold the event on September 25 and 26, 2021.   

City Council approved $5,000 sponsorships for the Capitola Beach Festival in both 2018 and 

2019 after receiving requests to do so from event organizers. In 2018 the funding came from the 

City Manager unanticipated events account; however, in 2019 staff created a separate account 

within the City Council’s budget for sponsorship of the Beach Festival. In 2020 the Beach 

Festival sponsorship account was not funded due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In 2021 the 

sponsorship account was not funded due to uncertainty around the pandemic and in a partial 

oversight. On July 14, 2021, after approval of the FY 2021/22 Budget, the City Council received 

a request for a $5,000 sponsorship for the 2021 Beach Festival.    

DISCUSSION: The 2021 Capitola Beach Festival will take place on September 25 and 26 in 

Capitola Village. The festival is free and open to the public. If the Council agrees to sponsor the 

Capitola Beach Festival this year, the funds could come from the City Council contract services 

fund. The FY 2021-22 approved budget includes $5,000 in the City Council general contract 

services account which could be utilized for sponsoring the Beach Festival. This account, which 

also had $5,000 in the prior year’s budget, was not utilized in FY 2020-21. 

FISCAL IMPACT: No fiscal impact; the City will use $5,000 approved within the FY 2021-22 City 

Council general contract services budget.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. CBF City donation request 2021 
 

Report Prepared By:   Chloe Woodmansee 
 City Clerk 
 

9.D

Packet Pg. 133



Beach Festival Scholarship Request  
August 26, 2021 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

9.D

Packet Pg. 134



 
 
“Community Spirit” 
September 25th & 26th 2021 
 
Date:  July 14, 2021 
To:  Capitola City Council 
From: Capitola Beach Festival 
 Capitolabeachfestival.com 
 
 
We are so pleased with the city’s approval to hold the Capitola Beach Festival 
again this year after our cancelling the event last year due to COVID-19. Everyone 
is so eager to see a return of our beloved summer events which make this such a 
special community. In that vein, the Capitola Beach Festival plans to return 
September 25th and 26th with this year’s theme “Community Spirit”. 
 
Our mission is to engage our local community in several traditional fun family 
activities and to enhance the experience of our visitors. And we strive to support 
the businesses in Capitola Village who have had a particularly difficult time for the 
past many months. All the while, we love showcasing the charm of our beloved 
Capitola Village, Wharf and Soquel Creek. 
 
The Capitola Beach Festival requests that the City grant a $5,000 sponsorship.  The 
Festival requires considerable overhead for operating costs, including permits and 
insurance. Please help us offset some of those costs so that our team can continue 
to provide an “event full” Beach Festival weekend for our community. 
 
We understand that City finances may also be strained at this time and appreciate 
your consideration of this request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mary Beth Cahalen 
President, Capitola Beach Festival 

 

9.D.1

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

B
F

 C
it

y 
d

o
n

at
io

n
 r

eq
u

es
t 

20
21

  (
B

ea
ch

 F
es

ti
va

l S
ch

o
la

rs
h

ip
 R

eq
u

es
t)


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. New Museum Curator
	Printout: New Museum Curator

	B. Certificates of Appreciation
	Printout: Certificates of Appreciation


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. A.	Item 8.G – two staff provided attachments
	Attachment: A.	Item 8.G – two staff provided attachments

	B. B.	Item 9.A – two public comment emails
	Attachment: B.	Item 9.A – two public comment emails


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approve Council Minutes
	Printout: Approve Council Minutes
	a. 7-22-21 draft

	B. PC action minutes
	Printout: PC action minutes
	a. PC 05.06.21 Action Minutes 
	b. PC 07.15.21 Action Minutes DRAFT

	C. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 7-16-21 Check Register
	2. 7-23-21 Check Register
	3. 7-30-21 Check Register
	4. 8-6-21 Check Register
	5. 8-13-21 Check Register

	D. SCORE Central Coast BRTF Donation
	Printout: SCORE Central Coast BRTF Donation

	E. PD Motorcycle
	Printout: PD Motorcycle
	1. MAX BMW BID
	2. PD Motorcycle Budget Amendment

	F. Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule
	Printout: Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule

	G. Employee Group Agreements
	Printout: Employee Group Agreements

	H. Capitola Recreation Afterschool
	Printout: Capitola Recreation Afterschool


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. COVID-19 Emergency- Update 30
	Printout: COVID-19 Emergency- Update 30

	B. 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Adaptive Signal Project
	Printout: 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Adaptive Signal Project
	1. 41st Avenue Signal Project Bid Summary

	C. Community Grant Subcommittee
	Printout: Community Grant Subcommittee

	D. Beach Festival Scholarship Request
	Printout: Beach Festival Scholarship Request
	1. CBF City donation request 2021


	10. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · New Museum Curator
	2.B · Certificates of Appreciation
	4.A · A.	Item 8.G – two staff provided attachments
	4.B · B.	Item 9.A – two public comment emails
	8.A · Approve Council Minutes
	8.A.a · 7-22-21 draft

	8.B · PC action minutes
	8.B.a · PC 05.06.21 Action Minutes 
	8.B.b · PC 07.15.21 Action Minutes DRAFT

	8.C · Approval of City Check Registers
	8.C.1 · 7-16-21 Check Register
	8.C.2 · 7-23-21 Check Register
	8.C.3 · 7-30-21 Check Register
	8.C.4 · 8-6-21 Check Register
	8.C.5 · 8-13-21 Check Register

	8.D · SCORE Central Coast BRTF Donation
	8.E · PD Motorcycle
	8.E.1 · MAX BMW BID
	8.E.2 · PD Motorcycle Budget Amendment

	8.F · Hourly and Seasonal Salary Schedule
	8.G · Employee Group Agreements
	8.H · Capitola Recreation Afterschool
	9.A · COVID-19 Emergency- Update 30
	9.B · 41st Avenue Traffic Signal Adaptive Signal Project
	9.B.1 · 41st Avenue Signal Project Bid Summary

	9.C · Community Grant Subcommittee
	9.D · Beach Festival Scholarship Request
	9.D.1 · CBF City donation request 2021



